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F % it CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

AARAZYRAEEERAR LA (AR | am pleased to present the annual report of Tysan Holdings Limited (th
A EREMBRAR (AEEDEE=_FT— "Company’)together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”)for the year ended 31
—F=ZA=ZF+—BLEEZEHR -HEBE March 2011. For the year under review, the Group achieved a record profit
FE AREHSAAARFREGREFEA  atributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$373 million, equivalent to
373,000,000% 7T - BER G044 T+ HK$0.44/share, representing a 38% increase (2009/10: HK$271 million,
#138% (ZT TN,/ —FF : 271,000,000 equivalent to HK$0.32/share) while turnover increased by 25% to HK$
BT BERER032ET) - MEEEA 2,660 million (2009/10: HK$2,134 million).

1 1125% %2,660,000,0008 7T (2T NF

/—F4 :2,134,000,000% ) <

iz = DIVIDEND

EERRZAR_ZE——F/\A=ZBAEIIEK  The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of
NARR ARz RFRAREAKREEFR0.04  HKSO.04 (2009/10: HK$0.03) per share to shareholders whose names
BIL(ZTTN/—ZF : §R0.03%T) ©  appear on the Company's register of members on 3 August 201 1. Together
FERPEHRETR0.02EBT(ZFTE N, —  with the interim dividend of HK$0.02 (2009/10: HK$0.015), the total
TF : §R0.015% ) - FERSMBESE  annual dividend will amount to HK$0.06 (2009/10: HK$0.045). Subject to
006BIL(ZTZN,/—FF : 0045/  shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the
) cHRREEERRBEFRAELHE  proposed final dividend will be paid on or before 19 August 2011.

& BREZRPBRERER-_T——F/\A

TAHRZAIXN
EF el BUSINESS REVIEW
BHEMS Hong Kong Market

WETERBRPZNIEE - BB T 2K

DEZBEANMSHETERGSY R

o ARAREFNI0EARERIFE ik
BRHA —T——E2F——WBRFEBN
HEATRATEEEET  MEEIH
KR ERB600EET - BEAIERBEER
BAE - BERASRERBEEBR R RAES

EEE N

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

Being the first stage of construction process, the foundation industry has sfarted
to benefit from the massive infrastructure projects which have just commenced.
It is estimated that the government capital expenditure on infrastructure will
reach a record of HK$58 billion in fiscal year 2011-2012 and the annual
spending will continue to be over HK$60 billion as the 10 major infrastructure
projects rolled out over the next few years. These projects include the Hong
Kong-Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, the Hong Kong section of the Guangzhou-
Shenzhen-Hong Kong Express Rail Link, and the Kai Tak Development Plan.
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Foundation Piling

The Group's foundation division achieved very safisfactory results during the
year with turnover being doubled to HK$ 1,853 million while net contribution
increased by 58% to HK$ 150 million. More than 50% of the Group's
contracts during the year under review were from the public sector. The
Group's major contracts on hand include, inter alia, Express Rail Link, Sun
Hung Kai's project in Yuen Long Area 15 and MTR South Island Line Contract
903. The Group is confident in the outlook of the industry and its order book.

Other Construction Related Sectors

During the year, the electrical and mechanical engineering division recorded a
turnover of HK$29 million and a contribution of approximately HK$2 million
while the contribution from the Group's building construction business was
approximately HK$5 million. The Group expects the divisions to yield stable
returns.

The machinery hiring and trading division recorded a turnover of HK$ 12
million but incurred a loss of HK$ 3 million as the pricing in the market
continued fo be very competitive during the year under review. With the
growing demand from the construction industry, the Group expects the division
fo breakeven in the coming year.

PRC Market

Shanghai, Tianjin and Shenyang, the three cities where the Group's property
projects are located, continue fo rank among the highest growth cities in
China. In 2010, China's GDP grew 10.3% to over Rmb39,798 billion with
per capita GDP of Rmb29,700. Shanghai recorded a GDP growth of 9.9% to
Rmb1,687 billion with a per capita GDP of Rmb87,816. Tianjin experienced
a GDP growth of 17.4% to Rmb9@11 billion with a per capita GDP of
Rmb74,166 while Shenyang achieved a GDP growth of 14.1% to Rmb502
billion with a per capita GDP of Rmb63,667 in 2010.

g3 2010/2011 @
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Property Investment and Management

On 12 June 2010, the Group entered into a disposal agreement to sell all its
inferests in Tianjin International Building. The subject sale was completed on
29 October 2010 and the Group received a net cash flow of over HK$400
million and achieved a profit of HK$ 156 million which was reflected in this
financial year. In view of the coming surge in new supply of grade A
commercial propetties in Tianjin, the Group decided it was the appropriafe
fime to divest this investment. The disposal enabled the Group to increase ifs
working capital and investment potential which in turn improves the liquidity
and strengthens the overall financial position of the Group.

To consolidate its interests in various properties, the Group entered info a sale
and purchase agreement on 15 November 2010 to acquire the remaining
non-controlling interests of three property investments in Shanghai namely
China Garden, Aidu Apartments and The Waterfront for a consideration of
approximately HK$300 million. Upon completion, the Group would wholly-
own and enjoy all contribution derived from such properties.

Tumnover of the property investment division during the year under review
amounted to HK$75 million while net contribution (excluding revaluation and
disposal gain) was approximately HK$ 13 million.
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Property Development
RN =E The Waterfront

REBEEE AEEE LB 2EFHEBRM  Forthe year under review, the Group's residential project in Shanghai, The
5 B #52691,000,0008 T - mFIER  Waterfront, recognized HK$69 1 million as revenues while contribution to
£5415,000,0004 7T * M A F W A10518  profit amounted to HK$4 15 million as compared to revenues of HK$1.05
AT+ ) M £589,000,0004 7T © FIEAFT  billion and profit of HK$589 million last year. The improved margin was
BEDEEZHRNEBLRAK - RETM%S  mainly due to the increase in selling price as a reflection of market recognition
BERZARAZIER - REZERZ&HME  of the project. Based on the lafest selling price of the project, the remaining
B ZFREEBZHTARELEEMEEER  unsold area of the development is estimated to be worth over HK$ 1.5 billion.
BISEAT LB BERIEEHEL™  The recent tightening measures of the government did affect the overall
BZEERSEXIVE - BEEHEBEIART  transaction volume in the market but for quality projects, the price remains

ATE BROABE- unyielding.

= EE The Waterfront

A

3

P

%
J'V
e
-2
-
-
"
——
e
=

:

P

g

a8

I E T T L NS
" il Eleln'e

]

UM ANy

g3 2010/2011 @



:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

F % it CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

FUFE

AEER_Z-ZF+ - ARERZE
HETERBEBERUREZMENR %A
BREAEERZAE @REEEEL
75,000 755K © FESRSAME I E AR RIR
HERZRRET  RERESARE B
BESRERENENSBE-_T—=F=
A=t—BHLEMRFE -

ZESEE The Riverside

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

The Riverside

The Group launched the pre-sale of 2 fowers of The Riverside, a downtown
residential development along the Haihe river in Tianjin, comprises é blocks of
30-storey fowers with a total GFA of approximately 75,000 sqm, in December
2010. Against a backdrop of cooling measures and restrictions, the response
of the pre-sale was safisfactory. The revenues and profits of the pre-sale will be
recorded in the financial year ending 31 March 2013.
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Shenyang Project

The site in Shenyang is located at Huanggu District with a site area of about
41,340 sqm and a GFA of approximately 165,000 sqm and will comprise of
both residential and commercial development. The project is in the final stage
of planning and the Group expects foundation work fo commence later this
year. The Group is confident in its property team and believes the success
models in Shanghai and Tianjin can be repeated in Shenyang.

PROSPECTS

With the Hong Kong government embarking on its massive infrastructure
projects which include, inter alia, the Express Rail Link, Hong Kong Macau
Zhuhai Bridge, Shatin Central Link and South Island Link on one hand and the
increase in public housing construction, private sector developments and
major Urban Renewal projects on the other, the outlook of the foundation
industry is buoyant. The Group, being a leader in the foundation industry, is
confident that it will capture such uprising opportunities.

In view of such favourable outlook and the track record of its foundation
business, the Group, as stated in its announcement dated 29 April 2011, is
considering the possibility of spinning off its foundation business and
separately listing it on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Under Practice
Note 15 of the Listing Rules, the potential spin-off would require the prior
approval of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange. The Group has
appointed a financial adviser to review and advise on such matter.

As the world economy becomes more intertwined, economic measures
enacted in one country may lead to devastating consequences in other
nations. A very loose monetary policy, as in the case of QE2, results in
runaway inflation in other parts of the world but an over aggressive tightening
policy may choke economic rebound. While the global economy is dealing
with the aftermath of the financial turmoil and each country is trying fo resolve
its own problems, China has proactively taken fiscal and monetary
precautionary measures to guard against what possibly lies ahead. With its
existing foreign exchange policy and economic growth and size, China is
relatively insulated from global economic forces. To avoid economic bubble,
the central government reined China's economy through a series of tightening
policy measures including currency revaluation, interest rate hikes and
tightening money supply to drive away unacceptable inflation. Such policies
will slowdown China's property market in the immediate term but the Group
believes it is beneficial to the long term growth and sustainability of the
property market. To ride through such economic wave, the Group is
strategically prepared and equipped through the combination of reasonable
cash level, low gearing, solid income stream from its foundation business and

a landbank of GFA exceeding 250,000 sgm.

#3% 2010/2011
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All'in all, the Group believes that both its foundation business and propert
development business are on solid ground and is cautiously optimistic about
the overall prospects. To cater for future expansion and fo enhance ifs property
investment portfolio, the Group enfered into an agreement on 15 March 2011
to purchase the whole floor of 20th Floor, One Island South located at 2
Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang with a gross floor area of about 30,000
square feet for a consideration of approximately HK$203 million. The Group
expects fo grow at a balanced pace and will continue to seek for opportunities
fo maximize the interests of its shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group continues to adopt a prudent financing policy and sustain a sound
1 March 2011, the Group's
166 million (31 March 2010

HK$ 1,463 million) while total assets and net assets (after deducting non-

capital structure with healthy cashflow. As at 3
cash on hand was approximately HK$ 1,

controlling interests) were approximately HK$4, 132 million (31 March 2010
HK$4,836 million) and HK$ 1,899 million (31 March 2010: HK$ 1,474
1 March 2011

million) respectively. As af 3
amounted to HK$975 million.

, the Group’s working capital

As at 31 March 201
recorded a net cash bolonce of HK$706 million while there was a net cash
balance of HK$759 million as at 31 March 2010. Contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees of performance bonds increased from HK$ 135 million
as at 31 March 2010 to HK$ 176 million as at 31 March 2011

the Group's assets with a book value of approximately HK$ 161

, the Group did not have any net debt gearing and

. Certain of
million have
been pledged fo secure certain banking facilities of the Group. The Group's
bank borrowings were mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars while Euro
loan facilities have also been arranged. Currency exposure in Euro borrowings
has been monitored by entering info Euro forward contracts when the need
arises.
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EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group, including ifs subsidiaries and joint ventures in Hong Kong and the
PRC, employed approximately 1,228 employees as af 31 March 2011. The
Group's remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary
levels and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Fringe benefits include provident fund, medical insurance and
fraining. In addition, share options may also be granted in accordance to the
terms of the Group's approved share option scheme.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Group's Audit Commitiee has adopted new terms of reference in 2009 in
order to comply with the requirements of the code provisions of the Code. The
Group's Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor Ho
Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. lLung Chee Ming, George, who are
independent non-executive directors of the Company. The Group's Audit
Committee has reviewed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing, infernal control
and financial reporting matters including the review of the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 201 1.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude fo all our
staff for their dedication, hard work and contribution especially during such
challenging period. In addition, | would also like to thank all our shareholders
for their support of the Group.

On behalf of the Board

FRANCIS CHEUNG

Chairman

Hong Kong
15]June 2011
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr CHEUNG Francis, aged 58, is the controlling shareholder of the Group.
Mr Cheung is the Chairman of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. He currently also acts as the Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr Cheung is primarily
responsible for the formulation of the Group's strategies, overall policy making
and direction of its business development. He has over 33 years experience
in corporate management. Mr Cheung is a member of Tianjin Municipal
Committee of The Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference and an
Advisory Professor of Tianjin Nankai University. He is also a member of the
Board of Governors of Hong Kong Shue Yan University and a member of the
Board of Directors of four primary schools. He is father of Mr Harvey Jackel
Cheung, Executive Director of the Group.

Mr FUNG Chiu Chak Victor, aged 56, joined the Group in May 1994. Mr
Fung is the Vice Chairman & Managing Director of the Board of the Company
and also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily
responsible for business development, strategic planning as well as general
and project management of the Group. Mr Fung has over 32 years’
experience in the field of consulting engineering, construction management
and property development.

Mr CHIEN David, aged 46, joined the Group in March 1997. Mr Chien is an
Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for organizing and
managing the operations of the Group's PRC Property Division. Mr Chien was
the founder of China Garden and has over 20 years’ experience in the

property investment, development and management field, both in Hong Kong

and the PRC.

Miss KWOK Jennifer, aged 44, joined the Group in January 1997. Miss
Kwok is an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company. She is primarily responsible for the
Group's corporate planning and development, corporate finance, investment
strategies and relations with the investment community. Miss Kwok has over 21
years' experience in the finance field specializing in corporate finance and
direct invesiment. She holds a Master of Science Degree in Management from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology Sloan School of Management.
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Mr CHIU Chin Hung, aged 58, joined the Group in July 1994. Mr Chiu is an
Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the business
development and management of the Group's foundation business. Mr. Chiu
graduated from The University of Aberdeen, Scotland and has over 33 years'
experience in foundation design and construction works and is a Fellow of The
Institute of Civil Engineer and Hong Kong Institution of Engineer as well as a
Chartered Engineer. Mr. Chiu is a Council Member of The Hong Kong
Construction Association representing Tysan Foundation Limited since 2001 to
present.

Mr WONG Kay, aged 48, joined the Group in October 1996. Mr Wong is
an Executive Director of the Board of the Company and also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. He is the General Manager in charge of
the Group's PRC Shanghai Property Development Division and E &M Division
in Hong Kong. He is primarily responsible for organizing and managing the
operations of the Group's PRC Shanghai property development business and
its E&M business in Hong Kong. Mr Wong has over 26 years' experience in
the consfruction industry with more than 18 years in project management in the

PRC.

Mr LAU Kin Fai, aged 50, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr lau was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Board of the Company on |
October 2010. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company
and the General Manager in charge of the Group's Tianjin Property
Development Division in the PRC. Mr Lau is primarily responsible for
organizing and managing the operation of the Group’s Tianjin property
development business. Prior fo joining the Group, he had over 24 years’
experience in the field of quantity surveying and housing development with the
last 14 years working in the Hong Kong Housing Society. Mr Lau is a Fellow
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors.

Mr CHEUNG Harvey Jackel, aged 33, joined the Group in June 2006. Mr
Cheung was appointed as an Executive Director of the Board of the Company
on 1 October 2010. He is also a director of various subsidiaries of the
Company and the General Manager in charge of the Group’s Shenyang
Property Development Division in the PRC. Mr Cheung is responsible for
organizing and managing the operation of the Group's Shenyang property
development business. He is also primarily responsible for the design
management of the Group's property development projects in the PRC. He has
over 10 years’ experience in architectural design in the PRC and holds an
Executive Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Mr Cheung is a son of Mr. Francis Cheung,
Chairman of the Board.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr FAN Chor Ho Paul, BBS, JP, aged 69, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in August 1993. Mr Fan currently also
acts as the Chairman of the Audit Committee and as a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company. He was the former Non-Executive
Director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 3 April 2000 to
15 April 2003. He was a member of the Advisory Committee fo the Securifies
and Futures Commission from 1993 to 1997 and again serving in the same
capacity since 2001 until 2007. He is holding appointments on Government
boards and committees including the Chairman of the Chinese Medicine
Council of Hong Kong. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in July
2005, and was awarded with the Badge of Honour in 1991 and was made a
Justice of the Peace in 1993. He is the Chairman of Paul Fan Securities Limited.

Mr TSE Man Bun, aged 68, was appoinfed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in September 2004. Mr Tse currently also acts as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is presently a Director of CDSR Development Group Limited,
and is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of HSBC Insurance (Asia)
Limited, HSBC Life (Infernational) Limited, Crystal International Limited and
China Fishery Group Limited. Mr Tse has over 40 years working experience in
the banking industry. He joined The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited in 1968 and refired from the bank in December 2002.
During his service with the HSBC group, he was assigned many key positions,
including Senior Credit Manager; Managing Director, Wayfoong Finance
Limited and Wayfoong Credit Limited; and Senior Executive, Commercial
Banking. Apart from the banking field, Mr Tse is well versed in the reviewing
and analysis of corporate financial statements and has an in-depth
understanding of the commerce and manufacturing industries.

Mr LUNG Chee Ming George, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in August 2007. Mr Lung currently
also acts as a member of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is presently
a Senior Regional Director of Manulife (International) limited leading a team of
around 500 insurance/financial advisers. He first joined Manulife in 1990
and has since achieved oufstanding results. Actively involved in community
services, Mr Lung was awarded one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons of
Hong Kong in 1995 and was the chairman of The Outstanding Young Persons
Association in 2001 to 2002. Mr Lung was awarded the Medal of Honour by
the Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Furthermore, Mr
Lung is a Committee Member of the Board of Govemors of Hong Kong Shue
Yan University, a Member of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Power
Station/Lingao Nuclear Power Station, Nuclear Safety Consultative
Committee, the Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Youth Exchange Promotion
United Association and the Convener of Hong Kong Student Development
Association Foundation. Mr Lung is currently a member of the National
Comnmittee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference and
Justice of the Peace of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Miss MO Wai Ling, aged 47, joined the Group in February 2008. As the
Financial Confroller of the Group, Miss Mo is primarily responsible for finance
and accounting matters. She has over 24 years’ experience in the finance and
accounting field. Miss Mo is a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Mr LAl Kok Wai, aged 53, joined the Group in July 1994. As a Director of
Tysan Foundation Limited, Tysan Geotechnical Limited, Tysan Confractors
(Hong Kong) Limited, Tysan Construction (Macau) Limited and Tysan
Foundation (Macau] Limited, Mr Lai is responsible for the planning,
coordinating and controlling of the technical operations and administration of
the division. He has over 31 years’ experience in civil engineering, building
and foundation design and construction works and is a member of both The
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers [MHKIE] and The Institution of Civil
Engineers United Kingdom (MICE]. Mr Lai also represents Tysan Foundation
Limited fo sit in various Government's panels and committees.

Mr CHAN George, aged 57, joined the Group in February 2009. As a
Director of Tysan Foundation Limited, Mr Chan is responsible for the business
development of the Group's Foundation Division. He also oversees the Design
Department of the Group's Foundation Division. He has over 34 years'
experience in design and project management of commercial, residential,
hotel, institutional and super high-rise projects, in particular those of larger
scale and complex nature. With his previous company Arup, one of the
leading structural engineering consulting firms in the world; Mr Chan was
director incharge of two of the tallest building projects recently completed in
Hong Kong, the Intemational Commerce Centre and One Island East. He
excels in engineering skill and knowledge as well as all aspects of construction
planning.

Mr SUM Tin Fat Albert, aged 48, joined the Group in March 1997. As a
Director of Tysan Building Construction Company Limited, Tysan Project
Management Limited and Tysan Engineering [Shanghai] Company Limited, Mr
Sum is primarily responsible for the project management of the Group’s
Building Division. He has over 25 years' experience in the building
construction field.

Miss WONG Suk Han Kitty, aged 47, joined the Group in June 2007. As the
Company Secretary of the Group and Associate Director of Corporate Affairs,
Miss Wong is primarily responsible for company secrefarial matters, legal and
investor relations matters. She has over 17 years' experience in the corporate
finance and legal fields. Miss Wong is a Solicitor qualified in Hong Kong and
has been admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court in England and Wales.

#3% 2010/2011
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The Company is committed to maintaining good corporafe governance an

has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate

Govemance Practices [the “Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”). For the financial year ended 31 March

201

1, the Company has complied with the Code save as disclosed in section

[E) below.

(A) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(B)

The board of directors (the “Board”) oversees the management, business,
strategic directions and financial performance of the Company and ifs
subsidiaries [the “Group"). It has delegated the day-to-day responsibility
to the executive directors of the Company ["Directors”) and senior
management who perform their duties under the leadership of the
Managing Director. At the time of delegation, the Board gives clear
directions to Executive Directors as fo the matters that must be approved
by the Board before decisions can be made on behalf of the Group. The
functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the Executive Directors
and senior management are reviewed by the Board to ensure that such
delegation remains appropriate to the needs of the Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board comprises a total of eleven Directors, with eight Executive
Directors, being Mr. Francis Cheung, Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, Mr.
David Chien, Miss Jennifer Kwok, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung, Mr. Wong Kay,
Mr. Lau Kin Fai and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, being Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul, Mr. Tse Man
Bun, and Mr. lung Chee Ming, George.

The Company has received the annual written confirmations of
independence from all the Independent Non-Executive Directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board is of the view
that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent in
character and judgement and that they all meet the specific
independence criteria as required by the Listing Rules.

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung is a son of Mr. Francis Cheung, Chairman of
the Board. Save as disclosed, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship with each other.
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A5
s TEREBRKE (C) CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
ITRREFREBEIABRENH I There is a clear division on the roles of chairman and managing director
BB ERALTEME - SR HERE S which are performed by different individuals. This ensures a balanced
FBEESTEAR - distribution of power and authority.
ERELEEREERER - BRHIE Mr. Francis Cheung, the Chairman of the Board, is responsible for the
AEERRE  BBRRGIERES formation of the Group’s strategies, overall policy making, and direction
BRI REERERANERE of its business development. He is responsible for the leadership and
R BRAEEARFEFEHED effective running of the Board and ensuring that all significant and key
fEHE®  YREFERAEERR issues are discussed and where required, resolved by the Board in a
R o timely manner.
BHELEERALDRIZEITERES Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, the Vice-Chairman and Managing Director
BEE - BREAEEZRERENR of the Company, is responsible for the strategic planning as well as the
ERLERER -RENTEERS general and project management of the Group. He is responsible for
EBABZBBT AEEBTEAE implementing the Group's sfrategy to achieve business objectives with the
B REENEIRBER - assistance of Executive Directors and senior management.
(D) EERASBER (D) BOARD PROCEEDINGS
EXREFELBRINARERE UK The Board meets at least four times a year and additional meetings will
REFERRTHENEGE - REEC be held as and when required. During the financial year ended 31
T-——5=-A=t—-HULMRFE " March 2011, the Board held four meetings (save for the executive Board
BRATESRNALAABEBBREF meetings held between the Executive Directors during the normal course
BAOZHOTEERGRN  EER/HA of business of the Company).
BIIMOREHE -
NANEGHTFERITEAZE M The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in establishing the meeting
BREFHUERBBEAIIAZR - agenda and each Director may request inclusion of items in the agenda.
MEEEREARTHCRNERES A notice of at least 14 days is given to all Directors for all Board
BHELTORBHN - FHEEHNAE meetings. Relevant information is circulated fo all Directors normally three
REZFRERBTA=-RHEL2RES days in advance of the Board meetings.
BH -
ERARIWENBET  FERRES With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures
PERL2REFHREENTENN that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings
FEVRBRIZTHOENR - LAR B and that they receive adequate information in a timely manner to assist
REELMBERERBIIERESH them to make informed decisions and discharge their duties as Directors.
HE - 2REZHANEARB QR All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
ENGREREXRBERMHER LR Secretary and members of senior management of the Company fo ensure
B AHEREETEZRAFEFN that board procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are
FIEERBRARERTE - EF (BREX followed. The Directors [including the Audit Committee and
ZESeRIFNEES) BMEBLEE Remuneration Committee] will have access to independent professional
ER UBBEGTRE 2BE BB advice for them to discharge their duties and responsibilities, when
(MER)  MAEBEREARLRA A appropriate, at the Company's expense.
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(D) BOARD PROCEEDINGS (Cont'd]

Board and committee minutes are recorded in appropriate defails and
draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and commitiee members for
comments before being approved by the Board and committee. All

s .
e

o

minufes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for inspection

by the Directors.

The attendance of each Board member is as follows:

Executive Directors

M. Francis Cheung (Chairman)

M. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
(Vice-Chairman & Managing Director)

M:r. David Chien

Miss Jennifer Kwok

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung

Mr. Wong Kay

Mr. Lau Kin Fai*

Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung*

* appointment effective from 1 October 2010
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul
Mr. Tse Man Bun
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George

Attendance

4/4
4/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
2/4
2/4

4/4
4/4
4/4
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(E) APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF

(F)

DIRECTORS

The Company has a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment and removal of Directors. All Directors newly appointed
o fill a casual vacancy are subject o election at the first general meefing
following their appointment. During the year ended 31 March 2011, the
Company has complied with the Code save for the following deviations.

According fo the Bye-laws of the Company, one-hird of the directors shall
refire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting, provided
that notwithstanding anything therein, the chairman of the Board or the
managing director of the Company shall not be subject fo retirement by
rotation or be taken info account in determining the number of directors fo
retire. As continuity is a key factor to the successful long term
implementation of business plans, the Board believes that the roles of the
chairman of the Board and the managing director provide the Group
with sirong and consistent leadership and allow effective planning and
execution of long-term business strategies. As such, the Board is of the
view that the chairman of the Board and the managing director of the
Company should not be subject fo refirement by rotation.

Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject fo refirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. As
such, the Board is of the view that the Independent Non-Executive
Directors do not have to be appointed for a specific term.

The names and biographical details of the Directors who will offer
themselves for election or re-election at the next annual meeting are
confained in the nofice of the annual general meeting.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The Directfors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Every Director is required fo keep abreast of his/her responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business acfivities and development of the
Group. On appointment, new Directors will receive a comprehensive,
formal induction on the Group's business and his/her responsibilities as a
Director.

#3% 2010/2011
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(F)

(G)

—=h

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS (Cent'd)

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules ("Model
Code") as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
fransactions. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code for the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established an Audit Committee and a Remuneration
Committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was first established in 1999 and has adopted
new terms of reference in 2009 in order to comply with the requirements

of the Code.

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group,
reviewing the Group’s financial information and compliance and
providing advice and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee comprises three members, namely, Mr. Fan Chor
Ho, Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George, who are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Each member of the Audit
Committee possesses in-depth experience in his own profession. Mr. Fan
Chor Ho, Paul and Mr. Tse Man Bun possess appropriate accounting or
relevant financial management expertise and meet the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary is the secretary of
the Audit Committee.
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(G) BOARD COMMITTEES (Conf'd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. The atfendance of each committee member is as
follows:

Independent Non-Executive Directors Attendance
Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Tse Man Bun 2/2
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George 2/2

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's interim
resulfs for the six months ended 30 September 2010 and final results for
the year ended 31 March 2011, and reviewed and discussed with the
external auditors over the financial reporting of the Group. The Audit
Committee reviewed with the management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed with the management in
relation to auditing, system of internal control, and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the connected
fransactions entered into by the Group during the year and made
recommendation fo the Board on the re-appoiniment of external auditors
and reviewed and approved the remuneration of external auditors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005 with specific
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the Code. It is
responsible for making recommendations fo the Board on the Company's
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management and is delegated by the Board to determine specific
remuneration packages for all Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. It is the Group's policy fo provide
remuneration packages af fair market value in order fo atract and retain
high quality staff.

The Remuneration Committee comprises an Executive Director, Mr.
Francis Cheung and two Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely,

Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul and Mr. Tse Man Bun.
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(G) BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

(H)
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Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Remuneration
Committee held four meetings and the aftendance of each committee
member is as follows:

Directors Attendance
Mr. Francis Cheung

[Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) 4/4
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 4/4
Mr. Tse Man Bun 4/4

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration
policy and recommended the remuneration packages and discretionary
bonuses of the Executive Directors and senior management for the
Board's consideration.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the financial
statements of the Company are set out in the "Report of the Independent
Auditors” on pages 40 and 41.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2011, the Group was
charged HK$2,650,000 for auditing services and a total of
HK$803,000 for non-auditing services by the Company's auditors, Emst
& Young.

The fees charged for non-auditing services included, inter alia, (i)
HK$ 150,000 for review of interim results, {ii] HK$580,000 for review
of notifiable and continuing connected transactions, and |iii)
HK$54,000 for taxation services.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility to ensure that the Group maintains
sound and effective controls to safequard its assets and the investments of
the shareholders of the Company. The Board and the Audit Committee
conduct annual review of the effectiveness of the inferal control system
of the Group covering the financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions. During the annual review, the Board and
the Audit Committee have considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their fraining programmes and budgets.
Based on the assessment made by the senior management of the Group,
the Board and the Audit Committee consider that the Group's internal
confrol systems are effective and adequate for its present requirements.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The Company maintains a high level of fransparency in communicating
with shareholders of the Company. Information of the Group's
performance, business strategies, developments and prospects is
provided in the Company’s interim and annual reports. Shareholders of
the Company are encouraged to attend the annual general meeting and
general meetings of the Company which offer forums for communications
with the management. The Chairman of the Board, the Managing
Director and the respective chairmen of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee attended the 2010 annual general meeting
and were available to answer questions.

The Company has ensured that each substantially separate issue will be
dealt with at general meetings by way of a separate resolution.

Shareholders of the Company are informed of the procedure and their
rights to demand a poll. The Company will ensure compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and ifs
Bye-laws. The procedures for voting by poll are set out in the Company's
circular relating to the general meeting and will be explained during the
meeting before voting on the resolufions.

The Company has also maintained a website (www.tysan.com| to keep
the shareholders of the Company, our stakeholders and the investing
public informed of our latest business development, results
announcements, financial reports, other announcements, circulars and
other relevant shareholder information.

#3% 2010/2011
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The directors herein present their report and the dﬁdjjsd financial statements o
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31:March 2011.

N

'\.._I

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of ifs principal subsidiaries and principal associates are set out in
notes 18 and 19 fo the financial statements, respectively.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
acfivities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2011 and the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 42 to 166.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK4.0 cents per
ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the register of members
on 3 August 2011.



BERME
TREARERHE-E——F=A=+—
BLEABASE GALE S&E AERE

ZRRfix RS v b T0ERER B B NS E R
B]MK - ZMEBS TEREERTB]RKRZ

ﬁ:

#35R { REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following fable summarises the consolidated results, asses, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the five years ended 31 March
2011, as extracted from the published audited financial statements. The
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

—&fp »
“2-—-% ZT-TF ZETNF ZTTN\F CZTTLF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
FET FET TET FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARAEBBRRR Profit atfributable fo ordinary
FE A5 % 7 equity holders of
the Company 373,441 271,424 346,675 107,411 43,083
mEE Total assefs 4,131,563 4835854 3,626,172 3,698,463 2,991,242
mafkE Tofal liabilities 2,202,148 2,550,838 1,691,480  2,205079 1,751,510
AREEBBRRR Equity atiributable to ordinary
FE{h s equity holders of
the Company 1,899,218 1,474,142 1,211,078 858,869 680,212
JE7E RS AR BRHE o5 Non-controlling interests 30,197 810,874 723,614 634,515 559,520

I - R RRE

AEEINYE  BEREENRFENZE
DEERRMBERN 14

BREYE

AEEZRENENAEEAZZEFER
RUBRRME5 - FEBZREYER T
EHMRZE-SFBEENFRE 1685 °

BEPYE

AEEERPYEFBHNYBHRERM T
16 % FIRE1678 °

4131563 4835854 3,626,172 3,698,463 2,991,242

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the
year are sef out in note 14 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the Group's investment properties during the year are
set outin note 15 to the financial statements. Further particulars of the Group's
investment properties af the end of the reporting period are set out on page
168 of the annual report.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Details of the Group's properties under development are sef out in note 16 to
the financial statements and on page 167 of the annual report.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Details of the Group's properties held for sale are sef out in note 22 fo the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are set out in nofes 33 and 34 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for preemptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis fo existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group during
the year are set out in note 35 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At the end of the reporting period, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, amounted to HK$195,220,000, of which HK$34,805,000 has
been proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the Company's
share premium account, in the amount of HK$557,630,000, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for 36% of the tofal sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to 16%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for 30% of the fotal purchases for the year.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:
Executive directors:

Mr. Francis Cheung
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor
M:r. David Chien
Miss Jennifer Kwok
Mr. Chiu Chin Hung
Mr. Wong Kay
Mr. Lau Kin Fai
(appointment effective from 1 October 2010)
M:r. Harvey Jackel Cheung
(appointment effective from 1 October 2010)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul
M. Tse Man Bun
Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Chiu Chin Hung, Mr. Tse
Man Bun, Mr. Lau Kin Fai and Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung will refire and being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from Mr.
Fan Chor Ho, Paul, Mr. Tse Man Bun and Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George and

as at the date of this report sfill considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to 13 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meefing has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

=% 2010/2011 @
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BEEREHNzRR DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

BTXBERS] —fHAREEN - RARE  Save as disclosed below in the section headed “Connected Transactions”, no .t
BA - BEENESEEIMEEARLQAIK  diector had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in.any contract of
HIMBARARITAAMERARREMBZA  significance to the business of the Company and its subsidiaries to which the
AZEBERACEMNEZERNFHEEEAE  Company or any of ifs subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Ns
s o

EBRFETHRAEBRROKR DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
HERD 2 EERFE POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

RIWEHR  ARRIESEREZITHAER  Atthe end of the reporting period, the inferests and long positions of the
ARAIHEBBER (BEARZSFRHEBRS  directors and chief executive of the Company in the share capital and
([BHERIEEG]) EXVEBE T 2HE)  underlying shares of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
ZIRAREBERNDPHEEARRRIEZES LI meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”")), as
BIROIFEI2EFE 2 B MAaEE - AR recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
BEMBOTAESENTELRHZEESFA  Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The
(MEESFAI]) BRMERRAIREBEBBERS  Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant fo the
FRERDA]([BAF)) 2 RHAEMT : Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
"Model Code"], were as follows:

(i) RERAEBRZIFE (i) Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
EARTF
BRTRAK
Bak
FREBERRYRERLE Percentage of
Number of ordinary shares held and nature of interest the Company’s
(EPN AL Hith @5t issued share

BEpg Name of directors Personal Corporate Other Total capital

REZELRE M Francis Cheung 38,007,865 256,325,000M  54,247,2007 348,580,065 40.1

BEBELE M. Fung Chiv Chak, Victor 74,867,600 — — 74,867,600 8.6

BKEEAE M. David Chien 100,271,020 — — 100,271,020 11.5

SHENE  Miss Jennifer Kwok 20,000,000 — — 20,000,000 2.3

HEBEE  Mr Chiv Chin Hung 7,500,000 — — 7,500,000 0.9

BRLE Mr. Wong Kay 12,765,000 — — 12,765,000 1.5

ZIfgEEE M LauKin Fai 1,200,000 — — 1,200,000 0.1

REZELE  Mr Harvey Jackel Cheung 878,000 — — 878,000 0.1

HXWHEE M Tse Man Bun 442,000 — — 442,000 0.1

fft & - Notes:

1. Z % I % B PowerLink Investments 1. 171,237,000 shares were held by Power Link Investments Limited and
Limitedi A 171,237,000/ 2 Long Billion 85,088,000 shares were held by Long Billion International Limited. Both of
International Limited#¥ 4 85,088,000 © these companies are controlled by Mr. Francis Cheung.
ZENAIRRFATE R EES -

2. ZEROBRAZLTEREPAZE 2. Such shares were held by a discretionary trust, the founder of which is Mr.

BEEMES - Francis Cheung.

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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&Igﬁl—tﬁkéﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ& DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND LONG
HERD 2 EZRER (&) POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Contd)
(ii) RAZR ﬁﬁff@ﬂfﬁ}Z?fﬁ 5 (i) Long positions in shares of associated corporations of the
. Company:
FELBRRENERME
Number of ordinary shares held
e EE R and nature of inferest
EEpg Name of associated BA AL st
Name of directors corporations Personal  Corporate Total
BEELE FAREIRARLA — 5,202,000" 5,202,000
M. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor Tysan Building Construction
Company Limited
FAIRREERAF 800 — 800
Tysan Engineering Company Limited
ZAEHERAT 26 — 26
Tysan Trading Company Limited
FgE/E ZAEHERRAT 24 — 24
Miss Jennifer Kwok Tysan Trading Company Limited
mREE FAIRREERAF 2,200 — 2,200
Mr. Wong Kay Tysan Engineering Company Limited
REERLE FAREIRARLA — 5,202,000" 5,202,000
Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung Tysan Building Construction
Company Limited
Hia - Note:
1. ZERGASHELEEEC0% R 1. These shares were held by Victor Create Limited which was owned as to
SR EE L £ % B 40% 2 Victor Create 60% by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor, and as fo 40% by Mr. Harvey Jackel
Limited# & © Cheung.

=% 2010/2011 @
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE"S INTERESTS AND LONG
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

(iii) Long positions in share options of the Company:

ERESREANBRERE

BN Number of options directly
Name of directors beneficially owned
Mr. David Chien 750,000
Mr. Lau Kin Fai 2,000,000

In addition to the above, certain directors have non-beneficial personal equity
inferests in certain subsidiaries held for the benéfit of the Company solely for
the purpose of complying with the minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2011, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required fo be recorded pursuant fo Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant fo the Model Code.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ and Chief Executive's
Inferests and Long Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above and in
the section “Share Option Scheme” below, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor
children or chief executive or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Rt B Y SHARE OPTION SCHEME

AARRL—BEREREI([5721)) - WA  The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose
AEEKY %@L’E‘{H BERIZEER2HEEIR  of providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute to
HEEE) R B13R o 51 &) 2 B HMN B BIRERM  the success of the Group's operations. Further details of the Scheme are

i34 o disclosed in note 34 to the financial statements.
TREBAARFNEARTEZEREZE  The following table discloses movements in the Company's share options
g : outstanding during the year:
EREXA
Number of share opfions
i BREZ
B E--f i@k
$8% ZE-%f ZR ERE: Brercise
fEES R mA-B EREE  EAGR  FRHE  EARN =t1-B g BREL price
Name or M1 Groned Exercied  Expired  lopsed A3 Dote of TRAR:  ofshore
category of Al dwing  dwing  dwing  duing  March gantof  Exerciseperiod ~ opfions™*
participant 010 theyear  heyear  theyer  theyear N1 shareoptions® ~ of shareoptions® ~ §RET
HKS per share
g%
Directors
RREfE 2,000,000 —(2,000,000] - - e ZERLE 0.82
Mr. Francis Cheung NEZtmE* N\AZ{TRAZ
UEN07* ZF--F
NAZt=R?
2482007
102382011
i e 8,000,000 — (6,000,000) - - - %5t IERtE 0.82
Mr. Fung Chiu Chak NAZTBAB* NA=TRBZ
Victor W§N07* ZB-F
NAZt=R
2482007
0 238:2011*
5 C ik 1,500,000 - [750,000) - — 750000 ZZEtE “ERLE 0.82
M. David Chien NAZTmR* NAZtREZE
82007 ZF--F
MNAZt=R?
2482007
102382011
JHZE 3,500,000 — (3,500,000] - - - %5t IERtE 0.82
Miss Jennifer Kwok NAZtBE* NAZtHBBEZ
W§N07*  ZB--F
NAZt=R
2482007
10 238:2011*

=% 2010/2011 @
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BRESE (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confd)

EhRESE

Number ofshare opfions

i
$8% “E-%%
EEAEN BA-A
Name or Al
category of Aprl
participant 2010
£z
Directors
BRERE 2,500,000
Mr. Chi Chin Hung
BELE 5,000,000
Mr. Wong Kay
REERE 800,000
Mr. Harvey Jackel
Cheung
YRt -
Mr. Lau Kin Fai
iftE8
Other employees
it 3,050,000
In aggregate

EREH
Granted  Exercised

during during
feyear e yeor

— {2,500,000)

—15,000,000)

—(600,000)

3,000,000 {1,000,000]

= (1,250,000)

FRTRE  FRHH

Expired
during
the year

R

--F

=R

Emg¥ =t-H
lopsed  At3]
during March
the year 011

— 2,000,000

— 1,800,000

26,350,000

3,000,000 [24,800,000)

— 4350000

‘ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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BhRE
RiA* BhRE
Dote of iR
grantof  Exercise period
share options*  of share options”

“35tE “3EtE
NAZTRE* NAZ1WEEZ
24-8-2007* “5--F
NAZTZR

2482007

10238201 1*

“EEtE “EEE
NAZtTmE* NAZtREAE

24-82007* “E--F
NAZ+=R*
2482007
102382011*
“EELE “E54E
NEZTEE* NAZTHmAE
24-8:2007* 3%
NEZf=R*
24-8:2007
102382011*
“5-%5F “3-%5%
AATEE" AATLAE
1792010%  -E-=f%
nAtAE"
1792010
10 169-2013**
i ZEE4F

NAZtWE* NAZtRmAE
24-8:2007* 5
NR=t=R
2482007
102382011*

BRE
i@k
Exercise
price
ofshore

options***
§kin
HKS per share

0.82

0.82

0.82

0.82
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Contd)

Notes fo the table of share options outstanding during the year:

Each grantee is allowed to exercise up to 25% of the share opfions granted
from the date of grant up fo and including 23 August 2008. Thereafter, the
percentage of the share options which may be exercised by each grantee
is increased to 50% for the period from 24 August 2008 up to and
including 23 August 2009, further to 75% for the period from 24 August
2009 up fo and including 23 August 2010, and further to 100% for the
period from 24 August 2010 up fo and including 23 August 201 1.

** The grantee is allowed fo exercise up fo 33.33% of share options granfed

from the date of grant up to and including 16 September 2011. Thereafter,
the percentage of the share options which may be exercised by the grantee
is increased to 66.67% for the period from 17 September 2011 up to and
including 16 September 2012, and further to 100% for the period from 17
September 2012 up to and including 16 September 2013

*** The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the case

of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company's share
capital.

**** The weighted average closing price of the Company's shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised was HK$1.32 per
share.

The options offered on 24 August 2007 were accepted by the offerees
between 30 August 2007 and 27 September 2007.

The options offered on 17 September 2010 were accepted by the offeree on
22 September 2010

Save for the above, af no time during the year ended 31 March 2011 were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any director or their respective spouse or minor
children, or chief executives or were any such rights exercised by them, or was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party fo any arrangement to enable
the directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

g3 2010/2011 C)
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FERRRROREERD 2ERE

RB|EHR - BARAREE #f&ﬁﬂi"iﬂﬂﬁﬂ
FIBOHRAFECERESCEFELR
BEITRAERALZEREMT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At the end of the reporting period, the following interests of more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of inferests
required fo be kept by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO:

RERBEBRZHFE long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
EARATRE BT
BE BRAEBDL
EBRRH Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s
ordinary issued
=y Name shares held share capital
Power Link Investments Limited™ Power Link Investments Limited " 171,237,000 19.7
Eastern Glory Development Limited?  Eastern Glory Development Limited 2 256,325,000 29.5
Goldcrest Enterprises Limited? Goldcrest Enterprises Limited 2 256,325,000 29.5
Bofield Holdings Limited®? Bofield Holdings Limited ? 256,325,000 29.5
Long Billion International Limited" long Billion International Limited ! 85,088,000 9.8

Kia - Notes:

(1) EsftPower Link Investments Limited & Long
Billion International Limited 2 # % 7 & 7
EXTEEREETHAB RS LR
Mz E=RITE] — MR BERERZLEEZ
NGIE:

(2)  #EALBBEERPower Link Investments
Limited }2 Long Billion International Limited
2 PR A 4 418 75 78 256,325,0000% AR 15
BEER

BrAjiEIN - RZE——F=A=+—H"
*E)Hﬁi)\i(i)ﬂé%&fxﬁﬁ)\%ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ
LRz EmR T —HlER
APREERFETHAERIN BEEZE
BARRBRMSKABERD P EREE SRS
BIEPIE 336K T AL 2 RS TAR ©
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(1) The above interests of Power Link Investments Limited and Long Billion
Infernational Limited have also been disclosed as corporate interests of Mr.
Francis Cheung in the section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests
and Llong Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above.

[2)  These parties were deemed to have interests in the 256,325,000 shares by
virtue of their equity interesfs in Power Link Investments Limited and Long Billion
Infernational Limited.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2011, no person, other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company, whose inferests are set out in the
section headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and long Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
fo be recorded pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(a) Non-exempt continuing connected transaction

On 21 October 2009, Tysan Foundation Limited ["TFL"), Tysan
Construction (Macau) Limited ("TCM"), Tysan Building Construction
Company Limited ("TBC") and Tysan Engineering Company Limited
("TEC") entered info a master agreement (the “Master Agreement”] to
regulate the business relationship and subcontracting of works among
them (including their subsidiaries) for a three years’ period from 1 April

2009 to 31 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the following subcontracting
works were entered info amongst the companies mentioned above:

(il TBC subcontracted foundation works of approximately HK$93.2
million to TFL; and

[i) TBC subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of
approximately HK$6.2 million o Tysan Engineering [HK) Company
Limited ["TEHK"), a subsidiary of TEC.

These transactions were enfered into by the companies in their ordinary
and usual course of business in accordance with the terms of the
agreements, conducted on normal commercial terms and the amounts of
these transactions did not exceed the cap amounts as prescribed in the
Master Agreement. These transactions had been reviewed by the
independent non-executive directors and approved by the Company's
board of directors.

3 2010/2011 @
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd]

(a)

e

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction (Cont'd)

Both TFL and TCM are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. TBC
is an associate of the Company. TBC is owned as to 49% by the
Company and 51% by a company confrolled by Mr. Fung Chiu Chak,
Victor ["Mr. Fung”). TEC is a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. TEC is owned as to 70% by the Company, 8% by Mr. Fung
and 22% by Mr. Wong Kay ("Mr. Wong"]. As both Mr. Fung and Mr.
Wong are directors of the Company, TBC and TEC (including their
subsidiaries) are connected persons of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange. Thus, the transactions mentioned above constitute connected
fransactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Renewal of tenancy agreement

On 29 October 2007, Great Regent Investments Limited (*Greatf Regent”)
entered info a tenancy agreement with Land Smart Development Limited, a
company owned as to 50% by Mr. David Chien, an executive direcfor of
the Company, in respect of a lease for an office property at Shanghai for @
twoyear period from 1 August 2007 to 31 July 2009. No renewal of the
agreement was made after 31 July 2009. Great Regent confinued fo lease
the office property at the same rate as stated in the agreement fill 15
October 2010. The tenancy agreement was negofiated af arm’s length
and was on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable and reflecting
the prevailing market rental and conditions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

[c) Acquisition of non-controlling interest and disposal of

subsidiaries

On 18 August 2010, Consco Investment Company Limited (*Consco”),
a then non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired
additional 20% interest in its subsidiary, Tianjin International Building
Company Limited ("TIBC") from Tianjin Construction Engineering Group
(Holding) Co. Lid.("TCE"), the non-controlling interest of TIBC, at a
consideration of HK$ 167,766,000 (the "Acquisition”).

On 12 June 2010, Tianjin Development Company Limited, a non wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Stonehill limited , a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and Tian An (Tianjin) Investment Company
Limited ("TAIC"], a third party, entered info a disposal agreement to
dispose of all of their equity inferest in and the rights and benefits in the
shareholders’ loan to Consco, and its subsidiary, TIBC, to an
independent third party (“the Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on
29 October 2010. Further details of the fransaction are included in note
40(a) to the financial statements.

TCE is a substantial shareholder of TIBC (holding 20% equity interest
thereof), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Therefore TCE
is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules, and the
Acquisition is a connected transaction of the Company under Rule

14A.13(1) of the Listing Rules.

TAIC is a substantial shareholder of Consco which is a non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Accordingly, TAIC is a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules, and the Disposal is a connected
fransaction of the Company under Rule 14A.13(6) of the Listing Rules.

g3 2010/2011 @

B smagsmadH



e R A

P

:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

#HH )P E REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS b

BEXS (&) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) WKEBHFEZKIKRER

(d) Acquisition of non-controlling interests
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On 15 November 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Duncan Properties Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with non-controlling equity holders (the "Vendors") of each of then 60%-
owned subsidiaries, (a) China Garden International Limited and its
subsidiary, Shanghai China Garden International Real Estate
Development & Management Company limited, (b) Allbright Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries, Red Shine Investment Limited and Shanghai
Duncan Property Consulting Company Limited, (c] Ironwood Pacific
Limited and its subsidiary, Hiat Investment Limited, (d] Federated
Resources Limited and ifs subsidiaries, Carriway Limited and Shanghai
Changning Duncan Property Development Company Limited, and (e)
Beneficial Enterprises Limited and its subsidiaries, Fund House Limited,
Duncan Property Management (Shanghai) Company Limited and Bestful
Consultants Limited, (collectively known as “Then 60%-owned
Subsidiaries”) to acquire from the Vendors 40% equity interest and the
rights and benefits in the shareholders’ loans. Further details of the
fransaction are included in note 18 to the financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Acquisition of non-controlling interests (Cont'd)

The Vendors are respectively the registered owner of 40% of the issued
shares in each of the Then 60%-owned subsidiaries. The vendors are
therefore substantial shareholders of the Then 60% owned subsidiaries,
and accordingly are connected persons of the Company under Rules

01 and 14A.11(1) of the Listing Rules. The Acquisition therefore
constitutes a connected transaction of the Company under Rule
14A.13(1) of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
directors have reviewed these continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that these continuing connected fransactions have been entered
info:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable to the Group
than terms available o or from independent third parties; and

(3) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The amounts in respect of the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above during the year under review have not exceeded the annual cap, where
appropriate, for the fransactions.

In respect of the continuing connected fransactions mentioned above, the
directors confirm that the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the
year under review.

g3 2010/2011 C)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

The Company has also received a lefter from Emst & Young, the Company's
auditors, to report on the Group's continuing connected fransactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Emst & Young have
issued their unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected fransactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules and stafing that:

(1) the transactions have received the approval of the Company's board of
directors;

[2)  the transactions have been entered into and conducted in accordance
with the relevant agreements goveming the transactions; and

(3) the annual amounts of the transactions have not exceeded the cap,
where appropriate, disclosed in the announcement of the Company

dated @ November 2009.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

In accordance with the disclosure requirements of Rule 13.21 of the Listing
Rules, the following disclosures are included in respect of one of the
Company's loan agreements, which contains covenants requiring performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company. Pursuant fo a facility
agreement entered into by the Company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company with a syndicate of banks and financial insfitutions on 24 February
2010 for a five-year term loan facility of up to HK$300,000,000, a
termination event would arise if Mr. Francis Cheung, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, ceased to own and control either directly or
indirectly in aggregate at least 30% of the shareholdings and voting rights in
the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share
capital was held by the public as atf the date of this report.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event after the reporting period of the Group are set
out in note 45 o the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young refire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors of the
Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

FRANCIS CHEUNG

Chairman

Hong Kong
15]June 2011
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e

To the shareholders of Tysan Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tysan Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries [together the “Group”| set out on
pages 42 to 166, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 March 2011, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statfement of changes in equity and the consolidated stafement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely fo you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility fowards or accept liability
fo any other person for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Cont'd)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s infernal
confrol. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2011,
and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F., Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

15June 2011
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A # 2% CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2011 HEZZ——F=A=+—HIFE " .
—E——F —T-Z
2011 2010
[t 5 FET F#ET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
= REVENUE 5 2,659,768 2,134,517
SHE AR Cost of sales (2,065,992) (1,415,300)
EF Gross profit 593,776 719,217
Ha g AR & F| Other income and gains 5 188,267 30,754
$HE Selling expenses (18,847) (18,884)
BRI Administrative expenses (51,698) (43,475)
REMERTE Changes in fair value of
& investment properties 15 17,899 /1,840
Hi - F%8 Other expenses, net (11,380) (5,200)
AR Finance costs 6 (10,364) (11,727)
B D R AR & A Share of profifs of associates 4,318 277
PR AR R PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 711,971 742,808
FIEHAX Income fax expense 10 (295,587) (353,860]
REEEF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 416,384 388,948
THBIEER Attributable fo:
ARAEEBIRKRR Ordinary equity holders
of the Company 11 373,441 271,424
e & Non-controlling inferests 42,943 117,524
416,384 388,948
PAUNGIE=S ] EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
EiEERER TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY 13
BN Basic 43.84 4l 32.34 #EAl
9] Diluted 43.48 AL 32.09 &l

BEFERERMBREAM T2

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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5 f & i W 223 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Yearended 31 March 2011 HEZT——F=A=+—HIEFE

v F —2——-F —_T-FF
2011 2010
; FET FHTL
5}{ HK$'000 HK$'000
4 FRiRF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 416,384 388,948
Hih 2 EH & OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BEEIMERA] Exchange difference on translation
MBREREEZ of financial statements
bE N E R of overseas subsidiaries 79,002 16,203
FREMZEKE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
MBRB B FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 79,002 16,203
FR2HBHEAE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 495,386 405,151
TS IEERS - Attributable to:
RRREBRRER Ordinary equity holders of the Company 434,280 280,361
e & Non-controlling inferests 61,106 124,790
495,386 405,151
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EAMBRMFE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Properties under development
Deposits paid

Inferests in associates

Other assets

Deferred tax assefs

Restricted cash

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Properties under development

Investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Amounts due from customers
for contract works

Trade receivables

Other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Derivative financial instruments

Tax prepaid

Time deposifs

Restricted cash

Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade payables and accruals
Other payables, deposits
received and
receipts in advance
Derivative financial insfruments
Amounts due fo customers
for contract works
Deposits received
Interest-bearing
bank borrowings
Tox payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

iogza
Notes

25
26

27

27
27

28

29

26

23
30

—E——F —E-ZF

ZEA=+-0F =ASgd
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
FEx FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(4= E3l) (#=E2l)
[Restated) [Restated)
305,823 284,777 282,686
411,464 1,258,540 1,206,160
275,574 346,769 309,862
388,037 353,514 348,835
30,348 19,632 —
1,090 1,020 1,000
100,146 63,071 29,051
— 22,836 —
1,512,482 2,350,159 2,177,594
281,762 265,888 270,374
122,933 4,002 2,501
11,624 25,910 31,283
439,569 107,649 473,876
88,407 92,639 53,818
454,734 397 441 300,165
48,348 54,167 30,958
87 12 —
5,320 7.403 7,035
788,527 052,375 06,477
56,286 Q1,344 56,675
321,484 396,865 125,416
2,619,081 2,485,695 1,448,578
480,959 376,529 406,904
163,652 38,012 55,304
26 293 —
224,428 201,434 132,106
173,482 438,315 34,853
128,382 400,153 521,056
473,502 420,440 144,464
1,644,431 1,875,176 1,294,687
974,650 610,519 153,891
2,487,132 2,960,678 2,331,485
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TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 31
Derivative financial instruments 26
Loan from an associate 19
Deferred tax liabilities 32

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to
ordinary equity holders
of the Company
Issued capital 33
Reserves 35](a)

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FHE
JENNIFER KWOK
EF

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Cont’d)

31 March 2011 ZF——%=A=+—H
2% —T-TF —ETNF
=ZB=+—-HBH =ZA=1+—H MA—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
FET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(4 Z3l) (4 Z3)
[Restated) [Restated)
2,487,132 2,960,678 2,331,485
332,332 304,622 118,374
5,821 1,453 —
24,560 24,560 —
195,004 345,027 278,419
557,717 675,662 396,793
1,929,415 2,285,016 1,934,692
87,011 84,531 83,821
1,812,207 1,389,611 1,127,257
1,899,218 1,474,142 1,211,078
30,197 810,874 723,614
1,929,415 2,285,016 1,034,692
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BAMEREIE  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2011 HEZZ——F=A=+—HILFE
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At 1 Aprl 2009

Tl comprehersiee ncome fo e year
Dividends paid fo onconfoling nes's
Repoyment fo.anar-conirling neest
Bercise of shore opfons

Eautysetled shae opfion arongemen's
Disposalofporfl st n subsicres
2009 finoldvidend declored and poid
2010 merm dividend

Tansler fom tined profs

At 31 March 2010

41 A 2010

Totol comprehiensive income for e year
Dividends poid o norrconfollng neress
Loan from a noncontoling inferest
Repayment o nor-confoling nerests
Beercis ofshore opions

Equiysefled shore opfion arrangemenls
Dispesal ofsubsidiores

Acaquiiion ofnoncontoling nferes's
2010finol dividend declored and peid
2017 inerm diidend

Transerfrom rfained profs

A 31 Morch 2011
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FOTRBRRREATIER
Atrbutobefoodinory equi oldersof e Company

R BhE Ei "'1-\ FER

Ba7  AER ik TR BREE
e Share Sore  EERE  Bdonge  REET Nov-  £E&
led  premim  opion Sty fuchclion  Retoined it conoling Totl
wpidl  occount  resene rseves  reene  profs Tl ineress  equily
ki TEn TEL  TEr TR TEr TR TR TEr T
Noes  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSOO0  HKSO000

(Wt 351))
(note 33(a))

83621 19293 12642 5553 1901 440608 1211078 723614 1934692
- - - - 8937 w14d 280361 124790 405,131
- - - - - - - [l6d0s] (16,409
- - - - - - - [1,173) (1,173
33,34 710 8,858 (3,746 - - - 5822 - 582
- - 2054 - - - 2054 - 2054
- - - (12) - - [12) (19952 {19964
12 - - - - - (1257 1257 - (1297
12 - - - - = (12388 (12,588) = 12589
- - - 24 - [2471) - - -
§4531 a1 10,930% 8012 138138 084.400% 1474742 810874 2285016
84531 928111 10950 8012 138138 084400 1474742 810874 2285016
- - - — 00839 I3 434280 61106 495,386
- - - - - - — (128828 (126,82)
- - - - - - - 47 54
- - - - - - - 2441 [2440)
33240 059 (1,02 - - - 0 - 0976
- - 1,217 - - - 1,217 - 1,217
- - - (3972)  (64931) 25991 (42512)  [41.540)  (264,052)
- - - - — 33635 03030 (921401 (467,766)
12 - - - - - (B4 (25472 - (547
12 - - - - - (17048 (17048) - 17049
- - - 1,010 - {1,010} - - -
gon - Sa7 1144* 5050 1544460 1093937 1899218 0197 199415

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$1,812,207,000 (2010: HK$1,389,611,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before fox
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of profits of associates
Interest income
Dividend income from listed investments
Gain on disposal and write-off of ifems of
properly, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Loss/(gain] on disposal of
subsidiaries, net
Equity-sefiled share option expense
Depreciation
Fair value gains on investments
ot fair value through profit or loss, net
Fair value losses on derivative financial instruments
Changes in fair value of invesiment properties
Wiite-back of impairment of other assets
Impairment of rade receivables
Write-down / [reversal of write-down) of
inventories fo net realisable value
Impairment of an amount due from an associate

Decrease/ [increase| in properties under
development and properties held for sale
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase] in amounts due from
customers for contract works
Increase in frade receivables
Decrease/[increase) in other receivables,
prepayments and deposits
Increase/[decrease) in trade
payables and accruals
Increase/|decrease) in other payables, deposits
received and receipts in advance
Increase in amounts due to customers for contract works
Increase/[decrease) in deposits received

Cash generated from operations

B smagsmadH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2011 HEZZ——F=A=+—HItFE

fitst
Notes

5,7

57
5,7

“E-—-F —E-TF
2011 2010
FiEn FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(K E5))

[Restated)

711,971 742,808
10,364 11,721
(4,318) (277]
(12,946) (1,301)
(113) (94)
(2,474) (12,008]
(524) [7,598)
(155,924) 143
1,217 2,054
52,751 46,997
(71) (1,501)
8,527 2,135
(17,899) [71,840)
(70) (20)

- 140

95 (21)

20 10
590,606 711,258
(160,104) 252,622
(470) 5,394
4,232 (46,327
(59,718) (107,342)
3,104 (28,757
108,723 (14,610
8,424 [16,684)
22,994 73,003
(264,833) 403,207
252,958 1,231,854

#3% 2010/2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 March 2011 HEZZ——F=A=+—HItFE -
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Kt
Notes

Cash generated from operations

Taxes paid in the People’s Republic of China [the "PRC):
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Taxes refunded in the PRC:
Hong Kong
Elsewhere
Fffect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Nef cash flows from operating acfivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Dividend income from listed investments
Dividend income from an associate
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 14
Additions fo invesiment properties 15
Deposits paid for acquisition of ifems of

property, plant and equipments 17
Acquisition of non-controlling inferests
Increase in investments af fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of invesiment properties
Disposal of subsidiaries 40
Increase in amounts due from associates
Decrease/(increase] in restricted cash
Decrease/ [increase) in time deposit with original

maturity more than three months when acquired

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

-

_Z-%

2011 2010
FET. FhL
HK$'000 HK$'000
(K E3])

[Restated)

252,958 1,231,854
(10,918) (8,287
(226,485) [40,955)
18 —

37 159
(5,480) (212]
10,130 1,182,559
12,946 1,301
13 94

- 490
(80,688) (49.301)
(4,135) (601)
(20,373) (2,125]
(317,766) —
(118,860) —
2,944 12,315
13,650 36,558
533,381 (12,555)
(1,134) (10)
57,894 (57.505)
116,130 (233,187
194,102 (304,5206)




F 4

b5 43 L B (A1)
A

REWEXBLRERE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

ERRITREENS Interest paid on bank borrowings
ERREETRD Decrease in frust receipt loans
MHRTEE New bank borrowings
EERTES Repayment of bank borrowings
AETRBREZITHRSD Issue of new shares for share options exercised
IHEERBRR RS Dividends paid fo non-controlling shareholders
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REREFE

RERERALER
Bm/ (BP) 8
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Loan from @ non-controlling inferest
Repayment fo non-confrolling inferests
Interim dividend paid

Final dividend paid

Net cash flows from/
(used in] financing acfivifies

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents af beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged fime deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows

Non-pledged fime deposits with original maturity
of more than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial posifion

B smagsmadH

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont’d)

Year ended 31 March 2011 HEZZ——F=A=+—HItFE

fitst
Notes

27

27

27

“E-—-F —E-TF
2011 2010
FiEn FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
(K E5))
[Restated)
(14,606) [12,960)
- (43,000
188,070 1,401,170
(432,320) (1,293,565)
20,976 5,822
(128,828) [16,405)
52,427 —
(2,441) (1,173)
(17,048) (12,588
(25,472) (12,573]
(359,242) 14,728
(155,010) 892,761
1,113,848 219,688
31,911 1,399
990,749 1,113,848
321,484 396,865
669,265 716,983
990,749 1,113,848
119,262 235,392
1,110,011 1,349,240

g3 2010/2011 @
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Other receivables,
prepayments and deposits

Bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due fo subsidiaries
Trade payables and accruals

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Total equity
NHE
JENNIFER KWOK
-
Director

o

'_"h
"
& -T-=
2011 2010
Wi FERL, . TEX
Notes HK$'000 . HK$'000
8 891,360 847,586
18 22,312 =
25 138 137
11,925 276
34,375 413
8 83926 188757
28 804 887
84,730 189,644
(50355 (189,231]
841,005 658,355
33 87,011 84,531
35(b) 753,994 573,804
841,005 658,355
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tysan Holdings Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 11/F Harbour Centre, 25
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

*  foundation piling

* electrical and mechanical ("E&M") engineering and building
construction

*  machinery leasing and frading
*  properly investment and management

*  property development

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ["HKASs") and Interprefations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the hisforical cost convention, except for investment
properties, investments and derivative financial instruments, which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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Basis of consolidation

Basis of consolidation from 1 April 2010

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and ifs subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 March 2011. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances, transactions,
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and
dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

Losses within a subsidiary are affributed to the non-controlling interest
even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity fransaction.

I the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
[including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and {iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriafe.
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W B FEWE  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 —E——%=B=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)
Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation prior to 1 April 2010

All the above-mentioned requirements for consolidation from 1 April
2010 have been applied on a prospective basis. The following
differences, however, are carried forward in certain instances from the
previous basis of consolidation:

e losses incurred by the Group were attributed to the non-controlling
interest until the balance was reduced to nil. Any further excess
losses were affributable to the Company, unless the non-controlling
inferest had a binding obligation to cover these. losses prior fo 1
April 2010 were not reallocated between non-controlling inferest
and the Company’s shareholders.

e Upon loss of control, the Group accounted for the investment
retained at ifs proportionate share of nef asset value at the date
control was lost. The carrying amount of such investment at 1 April
2010 has not been restated.
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MBI EM S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 ZE——F=A=+—H

22 B BERREECEH 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY. AND DISCLOSURES'.“A_.
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The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for the
first time for the current year's financial statements.

HKFRS 1 (Revised)

Firsttime Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
HKFRS 1 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firstime Adoption of

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards -

Additional Exemptions for Firstime Adopters

HKFRS 2 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based

Payment - Group Cash-settled Share-based

Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

Business Combinations

HKAS 27 (Revised)

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 32 Amendment

Amendment to HKAS 32

Financial Instruments: Presentation - Classification of Right Issues
HKAS 39 Amendment

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged ltems

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
HKFRS 5 Amendments included in Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in October 2008

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinved Operations - Plan fo sell the controlling interest
in a subsidiary

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs issued in May 2009

HK Interpretation 4 Amendment

Amendment to HK Interpretation 4 Leases - Defermination of the length of
lease Term in respect of Hong Kong land leases

HK Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
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W F WS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES
(Cont'd)

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of HKAS 27
[Revised), amendments to HKAS 7 and HKAS 17 included in
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009, HK Interpretation 4 (Revised in
December 2009) and HK Interpretation 5, the adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a) HKAS 27 (Revised] Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the ownership inferest
of a subsidiary without loss of control is accounted for as an equity
fransaction. Therefore, such a change will have no impact on
goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the
revised sfandard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Consequential amendments were made fo various standards,
including, but not limited to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows,
HKAS 12 Income Taxes, HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes infroduced by these revised standards are applied
prospectively and affect the accounting of acquisitions, loss of
control and transactions with non-controlling interests after 1 April

2010.

g3 2010/2011 @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY. AND DISCLOSURES

(Cont'd)

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May.2009 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. There are separate

fransitional provisions for each standard. While the adoption of

some of the amendments results in changes in accounting policies,

none of these amendments has had a significant financial impact

on the Group. Details of the key amendments most applicable to

the Group are as follows:

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that only
expenditures that result in a recognised asset in the stafement
of financial position can be classified as a cash flow from
investing activities.

HKAS 17 leases: Removes the specific guidance on
classifying land as a lease. As a result, leases of land should
be classified as either operating or finance leases in
accordance with the general guidance in HKAS 17

Amendment to HK Inferpretation 4 Leases - Determination of
the Length of Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong Land Leases
is revised as a consequence of the amendment to HKAS 17
leases included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009. Following
this amendment, the scope of HK Inferpretation 4 has been
expanded to cover all land leases, including those classified
as finance leases. As a result, this inferpretation is applicable
to all leases of property accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 16, HKAS 17 and HKAS 40.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND DISCLOSURES

(Cont'd)
b)  (Contd]

The Group has reassessed ifs leases in Hong Kong,

previously classified as operating leases, upon the adoption

of the amendments. As substantially all the risks and rewards

associated with the leases in Hong Kong have been

fransferred fo the Group, the leases in Hong Kong have been

reclassified from operating leases under “prepaid land lease

payments
equipment’

" . "
to finance leases under "property, plant and
". The corresponding amortisation has also been

reclassified to depreciation. The effects of the above changes

are summarised below:

Consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 March

Decrease in amortisation of prepaid
land lease payments

Increase in depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 March

Decrease in prepaid land lease paymenfs, net
Increase in property, plant and equipment, net

Consolidated statement of

financial position at 1 April 2009
Decrease in prepaid land lease paymenfs, net
Increase in property, plant and equipment, nef

—2--F —F-FF
2011 2010
T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
(2,780) 2,781]
2,780 2,781
(100,786) [103,560)
100,786 103,566
FET

HK$'000

[106,347)

106,347

#3% 2010/2011
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22 B BRREEZ2E (&) 2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY. AND DISCLOSURES

(Cont'd) 1
(c) BAREESHRUKHKIXZZ5— (c] HKInterpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -
EAANG B E AR 2 KEE K Classification by the Borrower of a Term Lloan that Confains a
A EHEHZ Repayment on Demand Clause

ZEBET BEBTFHEAN
BIEHENEEEREEERZ
BRZTHERERERARY

The interpretation requires a term loan that confains a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right fo call the loan at any time
shall be classified in total by the borrower as current in the

BRAXRP2EDERRD A statement of financial position. This is irrespective of whether a
B MImEEBELEENEHR default event has occurred and notwithstanding any other terms
BE GG HC ATAE M H A 15 and maturity stated in the loan agreement. Prior fo the adoption of

FREHA - REAUERR
AEEZERERDREBEERE
MARMBARKF D BRIER
PAG  ERZEMHBRER
MR ST

this interpretation, the Group’s term loan was classified in the
statement of financial position as a non-current liability based on the
maturity date of repayment. Further details of the loan are disclosed

in note 31 to the financial statements.

NEESHIEHEAE ﬁﬁ?ﬂ%ﬁf@ The above change has had no effect on the consolidated income
FE - HEaMBRARRZTE statement. The effect on the consolidated statement of financial
BT position is summarised as follows:
—E2-—-F —T-FF —ETNF
=A=+—-8B ZA=+—H mA—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
FET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RERIE Current liabilities
B B ER1T E R 1B A Increase in interestbearing
bank borrowings 20,582 205,616 124,205
FRBAE Non-current liabilities
it BRITER 2R Decrease in interestbearing
bank borrowings (20,582) (205,616) (124,205]

AEEZEERELEREMR

E|J E;g o

There was no impact on the net assets of the Group.

AEECHBRBGFERFITRLE
ERERR B ETENERATE
DILLE e - o ARNLAZEE R
RERGHERNE VR BHREXZES
ZHRE  ZEUBBRNCEIHE
:%;ﬁﬂiﬂﬂ—ﬂzi*/—\ﬁﬁi&ﬁﬁiﬁ
% BIFEZHBMES 2R %
ERBHRRA °

The amendment to HKAS 17 and HK Interpretation 5 have been applied
by the Group refrospectively and comparative amounts have been
restated. In addition, as a result of this change and as required by HKAS
1 Presentation of Financial Statements, these financial statements also
1 April
2009, and the related notes affected by the amendments have been

include a consolidated statement of financial position as at

presented in these financial statements.

2010/2011 Annual Report
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W F WS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendment

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-ime Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards - Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for Firsttime Adopfers !

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Firstime Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting standards - Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates
for Firsttime Adopters *

HKFRS 7 Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transfers of
Financial Assets °

HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments *

HKAS 12 Amendments

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets *

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Related Party Disclosures ?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments

Amendments to HK(IFRICHnt 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement ?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments !

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued Improvements fo HKFRSs
2010 which sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with
a view fo removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The
amendments fo HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or affer 1 July 2010, whereas the amendments to HKFRS
1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 although there are
separate transitional provisions for each standard.

g3 2010/2011 @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3

2.4

e

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cent'd)

I Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 July 2010
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of
these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yef in o
position to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have any
significant impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of the subsidiaries are included in the Company's
consolidated income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated af cost less
any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the Group has
a long term inferest of generally nof less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. The Group's investments in associafes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position af the Group's share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exisfs, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than properties under development,
properties held for sale, inventories, construction contract assets,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount
is calculated as the higher of the asset's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assefs, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-fax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
o the income statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consisfent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made af the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to defermine the recoverable amount of an
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined [net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the period
in which it arises.

g3 2010/2011 @
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTlNG POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Related parties

L
"\-\.

i'_.

A party is considered fo be related to the Group if:

[a)

(b)
(c]

(d)

(e

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
(i) controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the
Group; i) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii] has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred
toin (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power in
such enfity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred
to in (c) or [d); or

the party is a post-employment benef' t plan for the benefit of
employees of the Group, or of any enfity that is a related party of

the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated af cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
atfributable costs of bringing the assets to its working condition and
location for its infended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put info operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciation.

Depreciation is calculated on the sfraightline basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment fo ifs residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rafes used for this purpose are
as follows:

Lleasehold land under finance lease Over the lease terms

Building 5%
Equipment and machinery 10% - 33'5%
Furniture and fixtures 20%

Motor vehicles 20%

Motor yacht 10%

leasehold improvements 10% - 33'%%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, af least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or refirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

#3% 2010/2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interesfs in land and buildings (including the
leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held fo earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes;
or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially af cost, including fransaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
propetties are included in the income statement in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, which includes all development expenditure, borrowing costs and
other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during the
development period.

Properties under development which have either been pre-sold or which
are intended for sale and are expected to be completed within one year
from the end of the reporting period are classified as current assets.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position af
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land,
inferest capitalised during the period of development and other direct
costs attributable to the development of the properties. Net realisable
value is determined by reference to the prevailing market prices on an
individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if applicable, and
costs of markefing and selling.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets fo the Group, other than legal fitle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, to
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance lease, are
included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged to the income statement so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assefs and renfals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income statement on the
straightline basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
renfals payable under the operating leases are charged fo the income
statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assefs within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assefs af fair value through profit or loss and loans and receivables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. The Group defermines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly atiributable transaction
cosfs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits fo purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

The Group's financial assets include cash and bank balances, restricted
cash, time deposits, trade and other receivables, investments at fair value
through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments.

#3% 2010/2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. This category includes derivative financial instruments enfered info
by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for frading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the income
statement. These net fair value changes do not include any dividends on
these financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policy sef out for “Revenue recognition” below.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(held for trading) to assess whether the intent to sell them in the near term
is still appropriate. When the Group is unable to tfrade these financial
assets due fo inactive markets and management's infent to sell them in the
foreseeable future significantly changes, the Group may elect to
reclassify these financial assets in rare circumsfances. The reclassification
from financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss to loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Derivatives embedded in host confracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characterisfics
and risks are not closely related fo those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at fair value through
profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required.

loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rafe
amortisation is included in finance income in the income statement. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income sfatement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed fo be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset [an incurred “loss event”) and that loss
event has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they
will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.

#3% 2010/2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group
of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assefs that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues fo be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
[excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred]. The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate [i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition]. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rafe for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
inferest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the income statement. Interest income continues fo be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rafe of inferest used fo
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to

the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited fo the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has enfered info a passthrough arrangement, and has neither
fransferred nor refained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor fransferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of
the Group's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured af the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

g3 2010/2011 @
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case
of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable tfransaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, interestbearing
bank borrowings, other payables, derivatives financial instruments and a
loan from an associate.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss includes financial
liabilities held for frading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by
HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
income statement does not include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

Lloans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated atf cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an infegral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
confract is recognised initially as a liability at ifs fair value, adjusted for
fransaction costs that are directly attributable fo the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent fo initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i] the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required fo settle the present obligation af the
end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

#3% 2010/2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nef amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if, and only if, there is
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
setile the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are fraded in active markets is
determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
quotations [bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial instruments
where there is no active market, the fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation fechniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market fransactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency
contracts and inferest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risk and
inferest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
confract is enfered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are
taken directly fo the income statement, except for the effective portion of
cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated info a
current or non-current portion based on an assessment of the facts and
circumsfances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows).

*  Where the Group will hold a derivative as an economic hedge
(and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period beyond 12
months after the end of the reporting period, the derivative is
classified as non-current (or separated info current and non-current
portions) consistently with the classification of the underlying item.

*  Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
contract.

e Derivative instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated info current portions and non-current
portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the first-in, first-out basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete or
slow-moving items. Nef realisable valve is based on estimated selling
prices less all estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

=% 2010/2011 @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the
relevant confract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated fotal cost of the
relevant confract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due fo a contract customer.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as o use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive] has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required fo seftle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in finance costs in the income statement.

=% 2010/2011 (i)

EREmERARA D



:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 85 kA O

31 March 2011 ZE——%=F=+—H

24 FESHHEME (£)

Frig#

EREeRERRERMELRS
Mo BYFRBERERZEEFH
ZHEHENEME2AEREXERR
T HER

AR AEHEACERNRAEERA
& LA TE B AT W 1Bl o S A T B A5 14 R
ZEERE  FEZEEARBEH
RACKAERAER EEAR R E
(RBOR)  TEEBAKEEZMER
FRTzRBRIEH -

BEERAERRELRREIREE
PRBCHEARKEEMBERAE L
EEEzREEZ -—EREEZEE
B

BERAERGEAA RN E K1
ERTIARER - A TEREKI -

s REFTRXREATBREBAHZR
SERNSEREEXRBERE
H & R M SRR i B 2 & 1R
BREEMELEZEEREAR
ERN

s BERMEBARZKRERNEZ
AR EREEZ ERRE R
ZEMT  ERBRCDERIEZR
MERA FEH - RERMEER
R B8 & 70 A S A% 2R 43 1 Bl 4

LA
A ©

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income fax relating fo
items recognised outside income statement is recognised, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current fax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
faking info consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

*  where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the fransaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor faxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the fiming of the
reversal of the femporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, af the time
of the fransaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor faxable
profit or loss; and

* inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised fo the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply o the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is setfled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assefs against current fax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

g3 2010/2011 @



:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

B 85 kA O

31 March 2011

e R A

—T-—F=A=t-8

24 FESHHEME (£)

W 25 7 7%

EREBENRRAANEE - RS A A
SHEER  ARWSRATERER
2

(@) REMEITE HERBEIR
X0
WEN[RBEAN] 2B EF
E—SHBTRKANLAR
pi:

b) RELEREHREEZME
EHRAREZAEIRERE@ED

BEERE

(c) REHKREE
EHmARZKBHERRRRE
BEER MASETRE K

EREERAERCRAEEEER
T BEREGD HE 2 #es

(d PERESFBEEZHS KA

EMEL#ELABRRERER
EHBRNEE

(e) REREMEEERE
RIRHBEARE 2 ERHA
(f)  FEHA

RER EENERF RERA K
SR T AER A AFRHEG
AERRKEBZEETRES R
BEREFEINXRER &

(@ BEWA

BRI B 2 R HEE

N\
2010/2011 Annual Report
N

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will

flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably, on

the following bases:

(al

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

fe)

From foundation piling, E&M engineering and building consfruction
confracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Construction confracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred fo the buyer;

From machinery trading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;

Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased and
on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms;

From the rendering of property management services
In the period in which such services are rendered;
Inferest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

Dividend income

When the shareholder's right to receive payment has been

established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payment fransactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards fo eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
fransactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments ("equity-settled transactions”].

The cost of equity-setiled transactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference to the fair value at the date af
which they are granted. The fair value is defermined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-setiled transactions is recognised, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-seftled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit fo the
income sfatement for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest, except
for equity-settled fransactions where vesting is conditional upon a market
or non-vesting condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is safisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the ferms had not been modified, if the
original terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the fotal fair value of the
share-based payment fransaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured af the date of modification.

#3% 2010/2011
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(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the Group or the
employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if
they were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled transaction
awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of eamings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made at the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave eamed during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund”)
for cerfain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assefs of which were held
separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Contributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the income statement as they became
payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The ongoing
contributions to the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund refirement
benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured its
refirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
participated in an approved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required fo contribute
a certain percentage of their covered payroll to the central pension
scheme. The confributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

F% 2010/2011
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their infended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. Al
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other costs that an enfity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group defermines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency fransactions recorded by the enfities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling af the end of the reporting
period. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of hisforical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are franslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont'd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assefs and liabilities of these entities are franslated
info the presentation currency of the Company at the exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their income statements are
franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relafing fo that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income stafement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management
makes various judgements and estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of
estimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is based on
the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis of trade receivables
and on management's judgement. Significant judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each cusfomer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according fo the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percentage of completion of construction
works if the value of works has not been certified by the customers at the
end of the reporting period. These estimates are based on actual cost
incurred over the fotal budgeted cost. Corresponding contract revenue is
also estimated by management. Because of the nature of the activity
undertaken in construction contracts, the date at which the contract
activity is entered info and the date when the activity is completed usually
fallinto different accounting periods. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs in the budget
prepared for each consfruction contract as the contract progresses.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for fax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There are
fransactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes (“LAT”)

LAT is levied af progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less
deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use rights,
borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon transfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various cities in Mainland
China and the Group has not yet finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authority. Accordingly, significant judgement is
required in determining the amount of land appreciation and its related
taxes. The Group recognises these liabilities based on management's
best estimates. VWhere the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the consolidated financial statements in the period in which such
defermination is made.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the products
and services they provided. Operating segments are reported in a

manner consistent with internal reporting to the Company's key

management personnel as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment;

(b]  the E&M engineering and building construction segment;
[c)  the machinery leasing and frading segment;

(d) the property investment and management segment; and

(e the property development segment.

F% 2010/2011
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4.

KEDBEN (8)

EEEMEMNEEARERENBZE
B AELEBERIER KRR
ZRTE - FEDBRBUAHRED R
Al (BR) (BRERBAET,
(B1B) ZatBIRE) REE -

KREBERBANEN, (BR) DERA
SECHERLEBRBTAEN
EHEMBKRA  BERE  KE
A AEEEBRIALNTERT, (B
B) DEBERREMARARR R
AEFRAZERI -

NTREETERELEHBEE  BA
FEFABRZZRE  TEERT
A BEARE ERFEFAREMRK
TRBRARRAEBE  RARZSE
BEDNREEEEEE -

TREETERITEERIA 58
BITEE  BARE BLEHEBEAE
FEMADEEARRARER R
ARZEaENREEEEER -

SREBHIBERBRANEENE
SEMERZERRESZTEES
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments separately for
the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax.

The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs, dividend income, fair value gains/(losses| from
the Group's financial instruments, share of results of associates as well as
head office and corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, investments af fair value
through profit or loss, derivative financial instruments, tax prepaid, time
deposits and other unallocated head office and corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial instruments, interest-
bearing bank borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Geographical information

[a)  Revenue from extemnal customers
A R PEAMEE &a
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere in the PRC Consolidated
Z8--f -%-%% -“E2--f -T-5F Z%--f -5-%%F Z%--f -T-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
TEr  Téx  TEr TEx FErn FEr FEx Tk
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
NENE Segment revenue:
BETIMERE  Solestoextemal
customers 1883427 967,682 11,093 10774 765248 1,156,001 2,659,768 2134517
T EERANRFAIEMNE A The revenue information above is based on location of the
%o customers.
(b) EMBEE : (b)  Non-current assets:
o RF PEHMBE )
Hong Kong Macau Elsewhere n the PRC Consolidated
ZE--f -“%Z-%F “E2--f -“%-%5%F Z5--f “5-%%F Z5--f -Z-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
TEr  TEr  TEr TEr FEr TiEr FEx Tt
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
367,048 307283 | 18 1045287 1979787 1412336 27267088

LRFRBEENEEMENE
REEATERELCHARE -
B ETEEFZEHN

U 25 49 422,032,000 T (ZE—F
1 137,199,000 1) K B EIT 15
DERAE-—RFIELZHE -

The non-current assets information above is based on location of
the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about @ major customer

Revenue of approximately HK$422,032,000 (2010:
HK$137,199,000) was derived from sales by the foundation piling
segment fo a single customer.

=% 2010/2011
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—=h

5. W@ HEWAREF 5.

Wi (T AEEZ 2R HhEE
B TRUAI B SR 2 s BT
EREETRANER BEERSR
MEEERMBRA - HEMERESR
FBHESBA  hERAHREEZY
EZWABHEBARAB—YEX
RHpEZBE >

AEEZ s  ERARANZS

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the aggregate of
the value of foundation piling, E&M engineering.and building
construction contracts certified by architects or quantity surveyors;
income derived from machinery trading and property management;
rental income from property and machinery leasing; and income from
the sale of properties held for sale, after eliminations of all significant
infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of the Group's revenue and other income and gains is as

DR CNE follows:
2% —T-TF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
g Revenue:
HETE Foundation piling 1,852,870 919,593
EREETRE E&M engineering and building construction 28,688 41,923
HEEEREE Machinery leasing and trading 12,386 16,405
MERERER Property investment and management 74,724 103,247
MEER Property development 691,100 1,053,349
2659768 2,134,517
Hi AR &BH| : Other income and gains:
FLEWA Inferest income 12,946 1,301
NS Insurance claims 1,042 993
HE RMsHmE Gain on disposal and write-off of items of
BERRBER ZEN property, plant and equipment 2,474 12,098
HEREBMEZ BF Gain on disposal of investment properties 524 7,598
HEMBAR 2 BF - FH8 Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, nef 155,924 —
LT N Subsidy income* 404 3,224
BRATEFAER Fair value gains on investments
ZREZRNTVERM - F58 at fair value through profit or loss, nef 71 1,501
EREF - FE Foreign exchange gains, net 2,943 394
BERBEA Management service income 8,094 480
FHREZREBA Dividend income from listed investments 13 94
Hth Others 3,732 3,071
188,267 30,754
¥ BERERALERERZ GRE * There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
L
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6. FINANCE COSTS

£8
GROUP
4 “E-—-f —T-FTF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BIIRERBEXZME Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafs:
—ARAERNERHER -wholly repayable within five years 9,787 12,641
—ARBFRE2BEE -wholly repayable over five years 577 —
B BRANEERL less: Interest capitalised in properties
Z B (FEE16) under development (note 16) - (920)
10,364 11,721
7. BRBADNER 7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEBEzBRBEANSFLME GEA) The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/[crediting):
THIBBEREL -
2% —T-TF
2011 2010
ft &t FET FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
e Depreciation 2.2(b), 14 52,751 46,997
T RET Minimum lease payments under
LD operating leases of land
ZERIERLHNR and buildings 12,230 11,366
BERBZHEE Rental of construction equipment 24,899 7,151
ZEE B Auditors' remuneration 2,477 2,602
B 8 M % Employee benefit expense
(BREEEM: (including directors’
—HizEs) - remuneration - note 8):
TER%® Wages and salaries 238,404 180,892
PRS2 RS Equity-sefled share option expense 1,217 2,054
RS EIHER Pension scheme contributions 6,795 5,432
246,416 188,378

=% 2010/2011



”?_!'!ﬁlllﬂr

:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

A 5 it e O

31 March 2011 ZE——%=F=+—H

7. BRBADER (&)

SNEERLBF - FE
JEWE 5 fR SURE *
BEFEMHERE

W E 5 &R
WO/ (B RO FE=

ARREE
HERMBEETYE

Was R REHRE 2B
HERENE BN
HENBLARZER/

(&#) - FEr
AFEER/

(BH) - 8

BRAFERABEZ

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange gains, net*
Impairment of frade receivables*
Recovery of trade receivables
written off in prior years
Write-down/ (reversal of write-down) of
of inventories fo net realisable value *
Gain on disposal and write-off of items of
property, plant and equipment*
Gain on disposal of investment properties *
Loss/|gain] on disposal of subsidiaries, net*

Fair value losses/(gains), net:
Investments at fair value

BB through profit or loss*
PTETE-—TEE Derivative instruments - transaction
YHihas 5+ nof qualifying as hedge*
H i B E R E R m Write-back of impairment of other assets*
— B NE Y Impairment of an amount due
REFE* from an associate*
e 224 R FR 4 Rental income from operating
BN leases of machinery
LEMERS A Rentfal income on investment
HEELEYY properties less direct operating
14.999,0007% 7T expense of HK$ 14,999,000
(—E—FF - (2010: HK$26,610,000)
26,610,000/ 7T.)
FHRE BB WA Dividend income from listed investments*
* EHSHECERESARERZIE i

X HFR R EMRAREAT

A o

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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HraE
Notes

FET
HK$’000

(2,943)

95
(2,474)

(524)
(155,924)

(71)

8,527
(70)

20

(5,638)

(50,97¢)

(113)

—E-TF

2010
THT
HK$'000

(394)
140

(136)
(21)
(12,098)

[7,598)
143

(1,501)

2,135
(20

10

(7,838)

(72,312)

(94)

gains” in the consolidated income statement.

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or “Other income and
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant fo the Rules
Governing the listing of Securities ("Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

£8
GROUP
—E-—F —T-TF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
e Fees:

HITES Executive directors - —
BAFNTES Independent non-executive directors 432 432

HWITESZEMBE - Other emoluments of executive directors:
N REERBEYA S Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 38,153 27,431
AR A 52 A 2 B LA s L Equity-seftled share option expense 838 2,059
BAREFTEMER Pension scheme contributions 84 72
39,507 29,094

REE-_T——F=ZHA=t—HEZ
ZENE=-A=+—HLLFE RE
ADRZBERETE (FRERTHR
KHEMREZRE) ETEZRHMA
AEERURGERBLRE ZFE
BREZAFEDRREAHEE - ¥
EREEBHERERANX - MatA
AEERBHRRZEBEBENLXE
EMECHE -

During the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31 March 2008, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their services fo the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further details of
which are sef out in note 34 1o the financial stafements and the report of
the directors. The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the income sfatement over the vesting period, was determined as af the
date of grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

=% 2010/2011
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8. EEXEM=E (&) 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Coq;;f'd} _
ENSENEUEEMENT The remuneration paid or payable to each of The.airestors is as follows:
s N

HM -2 B
kBN G &7
Salaries, Equity- RIKE

allowances setled  EHEIfFR

and share Pension
ne benefits option scheme st
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total

FET FET FET FET FET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—E2--F 2011
HOTEE: Executive directors:
REZLE M. Francis Cheung - 12,473 165 12 12,650
BHELE Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor - 9,148 165 12 9,325
BBt Mr. David Chien - 918 4] 12 971
IHENE Miss Jennifer Kwok - 5,088 46 12 5,146
HEBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung - 4,292 33 12 4,337
BREE Mr. Wong Kay - 2,988 67 12 3,067
ZlEm@ts Mr. Lau Kin Fai - 1,863 321 6 2,190
REEXE Mr. Harvey Jackel Cheung - 1,383 - 6 1,389
- 38,153 838 84 39,075
Bk FESE ;. Independent non-executive directors:
Sk S M. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 144 - - - 144
E DA A Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 - - - 144
EFRRLE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 144 - - - 144
432 - - - 432
s Tofal 432 38,153 838 84 39,507

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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EEME (&) f_,*"': 8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
' E&
v . T
4 RENFR =l
4 Salaries, Equity- RikE
allowances setled  FHEIHFR
and share Pension
ik benefits option scheme st
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total

FER FER FER FER FER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

—B-%F 2010
HTES: Executive directors:
RRZELAE M. Francis Cheung — 9820 657 12 10,489
HEE R Mr. Fung Chiu Chak, Victor — 6,584 657 12 7,253
BKENEE Mr. David Chien — 890 160 12 1,062
SHE/NE Miss Jennifer Kwok — 3,104 187 12 3,303
HRBEE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung — 3,890 131 12 4,033
BRELE Mr. Wong Kay — 3,143 267 12 3,422
— 27,431 2,059 72 29,562
BIUFHTES .  Independent non-executive directors:
BEELE Mr. Fan Chor Ho, Paul 144 — — — 144
EIpE i Mr. Tse Man Bun 144 — — — 144
ETHLE Mr. lung Chee Ming, George 144 — — — 144
432 — — — 432
M@t Tofal 432 27 431 2,059 72 29,994
AEERN BEEENEIRNENE There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
ERM e 2 ZHE - agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

=% 2010/2011
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9. AfuBSHZES
RAEERBEFE  AfiZai s

BEHRARAESZ - HMEFFH
R L S o

10. FR&%L

BENBHREEFARBTEEL 2T
ERBEF2165% (ZF—FF :
16.5%) {EH %6 - B E i3 2 /& R
BREFzRARRASELEHE 2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS i

9.

10.

st
=)

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES > “"‘*—.m

The five highest paid employees during the current and prior years are all
directors of the Company, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. '

INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2010:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere in the PRC have been
calculated at the applicable tax rates prevailing in the areas in which the

RITERMEAE -

Group operates.

E3E]
GROUP
—2——-F —E-FF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERREM2 HBR Provision for fax in respect of profit for the year:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 11,913 8,520
Hibih @ Elsewhere 261,255 313,971
273,168 322,491
LTEEREBIR Underprovision in the prior years:
R PRC:
BiE Hong Kong - 463
H At & Elsewhere 27 40
27 503
EREFE (H5E32) Deferred tax (note 32) 22,392 30,866
AFEEZHIERX B Tofal tax charge for the year 295,587 353,860

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and its

MzHBERXBABREREFE 2R subsidiaries are domiciled fo the tax charge at the effective tax rate, is as
B 2 HENT - follows:
£H
GROUP

—E-—F —T-TF

2011 2010

FHET TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BR AR A Profit before tax 711,971 742 808

OEER R E 2 BiA Tax at the statutory rates 147,767 187,959

IR (B A B 1A Provision for land appreciation tax 148,085 145,057
THIEER BB E Tax effect of land appreciation tax (33,770) (33,633)

s R AT HIRE 2 R IR
M{EH 2 #E

B R G A
BARTUA

AFHRBIBZ X

?Jm% B IMTE’“*?Z—Mﬁ

/JE/@%'JZ%E?D@%Z e
PDRBEFEZHEARBR
REDHAER

BRAKEERNEFE
ZHARX

Adijustments in respect of current fax
of prior years 27 503

Profits attributable to associates (712) (406)
Income not subject fo tax (22,051) (3,142)
Expenses not deductible for fax 14,793 16,343
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable

profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries 45,019 44,669
Tax losses utilised from prior years (8,758) (6,585)
Tax losses not recognised 5187 2,735
Tax charge at the Group's

effective rate 295,587 353,860

=% 2010/2011
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11.

12.

RRBEBRRREMGER

AARIRBREEECBE-S —
—FZA=Z+-HLEFEALRLR
BRREEEGEERNBERRE R
202,977,000 T (ZZE— 2 & -
29,998,000/ 7T.) (Fif3E35(b)) °

RE

AEFRMRKRS

HE-_Z-ZF
ZA=+—HUEFERBRE
—BREBAI.0AEN
(HE-_TZTh&F
“A=Zt—HLEFE:
1.5784l)

FHIRR B - BB 2.0
(ZZ2—ZF 1 1.581)

ERRMNRARKE
RERE B — T mAL4.0781L
(ZZ—ZF : 3.0%()

AERRBRMN ZKBBREERRA
BRAKARZBERBFAEG L1
o % B RAR I S MR A R A
BB

. 2010/2011 Annual Report

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS .
ﬂ-ﬁh
‘\'}
11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY-EQUITY HOLDERS O

THE COMPANY e

The consolidated profit attributable to ordinary eq:rty._ho|ders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2011 includes a profit of
HK$202,977,000 (2010: HK$29,998,000] which has been dealt

with in the financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

12. DIVIDENDS
g5 -T-%f
2011 2010
FET FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Dividends paid during the year:
Final in respect of the financial year ended
31 March 2010 -HK3.0 cents
[year ended 31 March 2009: HK1.5 cenfs)

per ordinary share

25,472 12,573
Interim - HK2.0 cents (2010: HK1.5 cents)
per ordinary share 17,048 12,588
42,520 25,161
Proposed final dividend:
Final - HK4.0 cents (2010: HK3.0 cents)
per ordinary share 34,805 25,359

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.
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UAAALBERREEESKREF 13, EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

SREABR HREED AL BRE
R JE 15 AN F E & 7 373,441,0005% 7T
(ZZ—24F : 271,424,000 7T) IR
AEENE L ERMNEFY &
851,831,619 (= & — T F
839,191,793%) 1 & -

BE-_Z——=-A=1+-HIEE
ZEREERFDRBARRREER
F% 3 F& 1k ' 1 373,441,0008 T (=&
—ZE 271,424,000 7T) 5T E o 5
ERAZMETHLBREE - &
FREZRTEBEBRBRE - NFEESK
EXRRFEMAzRE - URRE
ZEERNNFEREREEET
7,109,377/ (ZE—ZFF : 6,582,678
BR) LB AR 2 IHE 9K o

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company
of HK$373,441,000 (2010: HK$271,424,000), and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 851,831,519 (2010:
839,191,793 in issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted eamings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2011 is based on the profit for the year affributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company of HK$373,441,000 (2010:
HK$271,424,000). The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise of share options into

ordinary shares during the year of 7,109,377 {2010: 6,582,678.

=% 2010/2011
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:.

31 March 2011

Cost:
At beginning of year
[Restoted|
Addtions
Disposals
Disposal of subsidiaries
(note 40)

Exchange realignment
At31 March 2011

Accumuloted depreciation

and impairment:

At beginning of year
[Restated|

Depreciation provided
duing fhe year

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiries
(note 40)

Exchange redlignment

At 31 March 2011

Net camying amount:
At 31 March 2011

L

o

GROUP \
HEREE BAREE &S
THEEF  Equipment  Fumiure AE B NERB

Lond and ond ond  Molor  Molor Leasehold it
bulding ~ machinery ~ fixtures  vehicles yocht improvements Totol
Tér TEr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
138,482 728806 32,341 20,141 6098 61841 987,709

- 730 1497 1,980 - 3,441 80,688
- (875¢) (452 {1,504) - - (10712
- (148)  (15754)  (1,142) - (4231) (4,273

- 470 173 237 - 1,295 2,135

138,482 794144 17805 19712 6098 42,306 1,018,547
10376 589,974 25430 14252 6098 56802 702932
4175 07 1,521 2,253 - 2585 52751
- 8,515) (423)  (1,304) - - (10.242)
- (94)  (11,408) (1,027 - (22008)  (34637)

- 378 125 154 - 1,263 1,920

14551 623960 15245 14318 6098 38542 712724
123931 170,184 2,560 5,384 - 3,764 305,823
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y
D HERRE ) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
&8 (&) 7 . GROUP (Cont'd)
REREE FARKE it
THRET  Eoupment  Fumive e BE  NxEE
lond and and and Motor Motor  Leasehold fazt
building ~ machinery  fixes vehicles yocht improvements Totel
Tér  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
(#27) (#27))
[Restated] [Restated]
“E-3FZA=1-A 31 March 2010
KA Cost:
£ Atbeginning of year 138482 707,707 32077 19,762 6,098 61361 96548/
hE Additions — 46,038 954 2,058 - 251 49301
HE Disposals - [24245) (718 (1472] - - [26435]
HERBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - 780] - (250] - - [1,030]
ELEE Exchange realignment - 86 28 43 - 229 386
RZE-ZE=F=+-H At 31 March 2010 138,482 728806 32,34 20,141 6,098 61841 987709
ZithE Accumuloted depreciation
R - ond impairment:
1) Atbeginning of year 6,199 579,149 24,091 13,681 6,008 53,583 682,801
KERHE Depreciafion provided
& during the year 4177 35700 1979 2,148 — 2993 46997
HE Disposals — (24163 [661]  (1,380] - - [26204]
HERBAF Disposal of subsidiaries - (780] - (221] - - [1,007]
ELEE Exchange realignment - 68 21 24 - 226 330
RZZ-FF=A=1-A At 31 March 2010 10376 589974 25430 14,252 0098 56802 702932
BEE - Net conying amount:

R_E-ZEZA=1-H At 31 March 2010 128,106 138,832 6,911 5,689 - 5039 284777
RZZENFZR=T-A At 31 March 2009 132,283 128,538 7,986 6,081 - 7778 282,686
AEEGFAYE  BERREERDF The Group’s land included in property, plant and equipment with a nef
8 /4100,786,0008 L (=5 —ZF : carrying amount of HK$ 100,786,000 (2010: HK$103,566,000) is

103,566,000/ 7T ) 2 + i 7t &8 I situated in Hong Kong and is held under a medium term lease.
BRHEORE

AEEETLHRET  RERMEE Cerfain of the Group’s land and building, equipment and machinery
BERRTAAEERHERITEEZ were pledged to banks as security for certain banking facilities granted
IR m (PFE31) o o the Group [note 31).

=% 2010/2011
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15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Contd)

L

o

o

Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary defails of which are

included in note 36(a) to the financial statements.

impairment losses are as follows:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Accumulated impairment losses

Net book value

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary [nofe 40(a))
Disposals

Fair value changes

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at end of year

The gross amounts of the Group's equipment and machinery held for use
under operating leases and the related accumulated depreciation and

&6

GROUP
—E——F -T-If
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
70,931 68,879
(55,827) 58,538)
(182) (182)
14,922 10,159

£8

GROUP
—E-——-F C-T-TfF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,258,540 1,206,160
4,135 601
(889,200} —
(13,126) (28,960}
17,899 71,840
33,216 8,899
411,464 1,258,540
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31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

The Group's investment properties are held under the following lease

terms in the following geographical locations:

31 March 2011

a3
PRC
BB Hithith @ wat
Hong Kong Elsewhere Total
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR A Medium term leases 18,500 — 18,500
REHELD long term leases - 392,964 392,964
18,500 392,964 411,464
—E-TF=A=+—H 31 March 2010
m
PRC
B Hofth 31 [ st
Hong Kong Elsewhere Tofal
FET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HHEAFE 4 Medium term leases 16,000 889,200 905,200
REA A long term leases — 353,340 353,340
16,000 1,242,540 1,258,540

AEBZRENECER -_T——F=
A=1T-BHHEBILEXSERBMER
EEEENEEFEBRRERARR
ARMSRREREREEEHME -
REMENREBEEEHNBETS =
T BRMBECE—SHBENPH
HK M E36()

AEBETREMECEATFRITIE
ARAEERESE TRITEE KM
(P3E31) »

The Group's investment properties were revalued on an open market,

existing use basis, as at 31 March 2011, by Vigers Appraisal and

Consulting Limited, a firm of independent professionally qualified

property valuers. The investment properties are leased fo third parties

under operating leases, further summary details of which are included in

note 36(a) to the financial statements.

Cerfain of the Group's investment properties were pledged to banks as

security for cerfain banking facilities granted to the Group (nofe 31).

=% 2010/2011
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16. BERERPYE

FNERF
KEERE

BRI M8 (7E6)
BREERFEHENE (HE22)

ERAE

FRER
ZNiE)

E Nk

17. EfNET &

16. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

£
GROUP

25 WWE-TF

2011 2010

FET TF#ET

HK$'000 HK$'000

Balance at beginning of year 612,657 580,236

Additions during the year 370,252 131,521
Inferest capitalised [note ) - 920
Transfer to properties held for sale (note 22) (449,329) (104,196
Exchange realignment 23,756 4,176
Balance af end of year 557,336 612,657
Current portion (281,762) (265,888]
Non-current portion 275,574 346,769

17. DEPOSITS PAID

(a) FTASEEALA#307,800,000A K (a)
s (F8E 7 365,453,000/ 1) 2
BUERBER 2 — 8 Litimy
5] € 365,453,000/ 7C (= T —

T4 : 351,389,000 7T) © X5
ME—PFBERARARET
NE—B=-t+N\BFIEZBX+®

#E -

b)) ERUKEDE BERIEDX (b)
NE]£2211,0006 L (ZE—F

F 22,125,000 7T) °

00 R-T—F=ZA+AHB K&E (c)
B— 2B E = RSB M
£ {8203,730,0007% 7T U 88 — 18 4
¥ AEBFEMNAEE2% One
Island South 201 & & ([ & & ¥
%))  cRBESRK - WEEAEY
¥ 21%420,373,0008 TERAE
Bxf - BARSE— LB
REAQDTANR-ZZE——F=A+~

SRik: AN

2010/2011 Annual Report

Included in the amount was a deposit of HK$365,453,000
(2010: HK$351,389,000) paid for the acquisition of a parcel of
land in Shenyang, the PRC, at a consideration of approximately
RMB307,800,000 (equivalent to HK$365,453,000). Further

defails of the transaction were disclosed in the Company’s circular

dated 28 January 2009.

Deposit of HK$2,211,000 (2010: HK$2,125,000) was paid for

the acquisition of items of property, plant and equipment.

On 15 March 2011, the Group entered into a memorandum with
an independent third party in relation to the acquisition of a
property being the whole floor of 20th Floor, One Island South,
No.2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong [the “Hong
Kong Property”) at a consideration of HK$203,730,000. At the
end of the reporting period, deposit amounting to
HK$20,373,000 was paid by the Group for the acquisition of the
Hong Kong Property. Further details of the transaction were
disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 16 March

2017,

-\:t‘-!\:.



g3

-

W F WS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

]
COMPANY
—E-—F —T-%F
2011 2010
FER FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEEMR - B Unlisted shares, af cost 20,310 19,094
BB A R 2 Rk Amounts due from subsidiaries 942,606 885,196
A Impairment * (49,244) (56,704)
893,362 828,492
—FREHL TR Portion due within one year,
RnBEEZ N classified as current assets (22,312) —
871,050 828,492
NI EUNG - O] Amounts due to subsidiaries (83,92¢4) (188,757)
—FRIBIER Portion due within one year,
mEa Bz EHH classified as current liabilities 83,926 188,757
891,360 847,586

#  AEECDRIREEA49,244,000% T
(ZZ—F 4 : 56,704,000/ 7T) (10
BRREEBN) CETHEBARZR
RERHNE  RARSHBARRS
EEEE -

FR - ARBRKIETHBRRER
Tz EWB AR 2 RN ERRER
[l 7,460,000 T (=% — T F :
3,722,000 7T) ° MBA R 2 KF KK
MEBRARZREHABERREE o
FARBDABZNBAREGTEARE
KR —FNEE Mt AERE
EEZHBAREGBERBERSE
HRET—FNEER  URABTZ
EMBARc EREER  EETH
BERAIZRAFARBRE BREFT—
FREE WBRARASLGFZHREER
EQAFERE -

#  Animpairment was recognised for certain amounts due from subsidiaries
with a carrying amount of HK$49,244,000 (2010: HK$56,704,000]
(before deducting the impairment loss) because the respective subsidiaries
had been lossmaking for some time.

During the year, the Company received repayments from certain
subsidiaries and a write-back of impairment of HK$7,460,000 (2010:
HK$3,722,000) was recognised for those amounts due from
subsidiaries. The amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured
and inferestree. The balances with subsidiaries included in the current
liabilities are repayable on demand or within one year whereas the
balances with subsidiaries included in non-current assets are not
expected to be repaid within one year from the end of the reporting
period and are considered as quasi-equity loans to those subsidiaries
except for certain amounts due from subsidiaries which are repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period. The carrying
amounts of balances with the subsidiaries approximate to their fair
values.

#3% 2010/2011
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=

:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W H B F W3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 =3~ —F=A=+—R -

18. B QB EDS (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
ARRIEEFENERMBERARRA M The Company has undertaken not to demand repayment of the amount
ETRARQAER/K380,000,000% due from a subsidiary, Tysan Foundation Limited, of HK$80,000,000 Y
7T (ZZ—Z 4 :80,000,000% T) (2010: HK$80,000,000), in order to let the subsidiary maintain the '
%M BN R Al 4 FF U R AR E A required minimum working capital as stipulated by government
ERERECLEEES - authorities.

FTEMBRAFEMT - Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:
ERTR
BRAMBRE,/
RAEE
M, Nominal AREEEZ
ARk e mE value of REBD
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity TEER
£ registration registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
“B-——-f C—T-TF
2011 2010
&5 (BR) BRER A BE ERR2ET 100 100 REER
Tysan [Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary Invesiment
Holdings Limited HK$2 holding
RAMETIRERRA Bk gl 100 100 R
(Hizz1k2) Hong Kong 51,000,000 JT Foundation
Tysan Foundation Limited BT piling
(notes 1 and 2) 3,000,000/ 7T
Ordinary
HK$51,000,000
Deferred
HK$3,000,000
RARE(RM)FRAF BP9 AR 100 100 WESTHE
(Hfzt1) Macau 25,0002 7T Foundation
Tysan Construction (Macau) Ordinary piling
limited (note 1) MOP25,000
RARHEERRRA B AR 100 100 BWEE
(FraE2) Hong Kong 10,000 T Machinery
Tysan Machinery Hire ERERR hiring
Limited (note 2) 200,000 7
Ordinary
HK$10,000
Deferred
HK$200,000

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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Name

RAMETR (B BRAA
(st 1)

Tysan Confractors (Hong Kong)
Limited (note 1)

FATNIREARRA
(1)

Tysan Geotechnical
Limited (note 1)

FERMIBERAR
(HfzE1)

Proficiency Equipment
Limited (note 1)

FEIREERRAA
(Hx1)

Proficiency Engineering
Limited (note 1)

MRERAR (K1)
Lion Bright Limited [nofe 1)

RABBERAR (Hat1k2)
Tysan Management Limited
[notes T and 2)

s,
MR EF L
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BE
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

BA
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

~ 4

A 5 4t e O

BEIR
BREMBRER/
RAEE
Nominal

value of

issued and

Fu||y paid
registered/
share capital

LTEBRIBET
Ordinary
HK$2

ERR2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

Rl
6,750,000 7T
Ordinary
HK$6,750,000

TEKR2ETT
Ordinary
HK$2

EER2ET
Ordinary
HK$2

Li@R1008 T
ELER2E T
Ordinary HK$100
Deferred HK$2

B smagsmadH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

KATEEZ
RERDL
Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company

S
2011 2010

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Principal
activities

BREER
BRA AR
Project
management
and provision
of consultancy

services

R E N H R
Site
investigation

BREEREE
Machinery
hiring and

frading

RETRRERS
Provision of
engineering

services
KREEREE
Machinery

hiring and
frading

TrXER
Corporate
management

#3% 2010/2011
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18. M AR (&) 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
EBTR
BrEMBAR/
RAEE
A, Nominal ERakhe
E3LIEE 3k value of REBDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity TEER
£ registration registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
“B-——-f C—T-TF
2011 2010
MEBAR AR BE ERR2ET 100 100 tXERE
Sun Sparkle Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HK$2 financing
ERERATF BE ERRIET 100 100 tRRE
Great Unison Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Corporate
HKS financing
ZARBERBRLA BE ERER2ET 100 100 REZK
Tysan Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
HK$2 holding
RANEERREARAA BE LER2ET 100 100 REZK
Tysan Property Development Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
& Investment Limited HK$?2 holding
ZAREERAF Bk ERR2ET 100 100 REZK
Tysan Construction Hong Kong Ordinary Investment
Company Limited HK$2 holding
ERERRAR (1) Bk LER2ET 100 100 NERE
Faithmark Investments Hong Kong Ordinary Property
Limited (note 1) HK$2 investment
Tremend Yield Limited (/4% 1) BB LRR2BT 100 100 ES &
Tremend Yield Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Properly
HK$2 investment
“HREBRRA (1) Bk LER2ET 100 100 NERE
Trions Investment Limited [note 1) Hong Kong Ordinary Property
HK$?2 investment
EGREBRAA (M) BE ERR2ET 100 100 ERRYES
Sure Faith Investment Hong Kong Ordinary Property
Limited (note 1) HK$2 holding

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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AR E XL
Place of
incorporation/
£ registration
Name and operations
BEERHEBRAR (1) BE
Duncan Properties Hong Kong
Limited (note 1)
Dragonhill Limited (47 1) BB
[note 1) Hong Kong
MBEREBRRA (K1) BE
Great Regent Invesiments Hong Kong
Limited (note 1)
BRER LA (1) BB
Great Prosper Limited (nofe 1) Hong Kong
RAFHERE (K2) hE/
BRRR (HiE1k3) RE A,
Tysan Property Development PRC/
(Tianjin) Company Limited Mainland China
[notes T and 3)
FHEWE (L) FRAF e/
(Fizt1 - 45) FEIRL

Tysan Land (Shanghai) PRC/

Limited (notes 1, 4 and ) Mainland China
ZAIRREBRAA BiE
(B 1)
Tysan Engineering Company Hong Kong

Limited (note 1)

~ 4

A 5 4t e O

BEIR
BREMBRER/
RAEE
Nominal

value of

issued and

Fu||y paid
registered/
share capital

TEKk2ET
Ordinary HK$2

LRM2E T
Ordinary HK$2

TEKk2ET
Ordinary HK$2

LRE100E T
Ordinary HK$100

15,500,000 7T
US$15,500,000

20,500,000% 7T
US$20,500,000

Eak
10,000 # 7T
Ordinary
HK$10,000

—g--f

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

NG P
RERDL
Percentage
of equity IEEH
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
—F-TF
2011 2010

100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
100 100 REER
Investment
holding
100 100 RERR
Investment
holding
90 90 REER
Investment
holding
90 Q0 NEER
Property
development
100 80 NEER
Property
development
70 /70 RERR
Investment
holding

#3% 2010/2011
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18. MBARER (&)

=L

Name

ZAIR(BR)ERAR
(K1)

Tysan Engineering (H.K.)
Company Limited (note 1]

ZEBERERAA
([ZER]) (F1k5)
China Garden Infemational
limited ("China Garden”)

[notes 1 and 5)

Allbright Investment
Limited (AzE1%5)
[notes 1 and 5)

Ironwood Pacific Limited
(HraF1%5)
[notes 1 and 5)

Federated resources
Limited (#5#1%5)
[notes 1 and 5)

Beneficial Enterprises
Limited (A3E1%5)
[notes 1 and 5)

AHBEBRAT
(Bizt1k5)

Red Shine Investment Limited
[notes T and 5)

. 2010/2011 Annual Report

MM,/

Ak ERiH

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

Bk

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

RERARS
British Virgin
Islands ("BVI")

RERTES
BVI

RERLES
BVI

RERTES
BVI

BA
Hong Kong

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd]

SRR
BrEMBAR/
RAEE
Nominal

value of

issued and

fully paid
registered/
share capital

gl
20,600,0007% 7T
Ordinary
HK$20,600,000

EFF1004E T
Ordinary HK$100

A 100E T
Ordinary US$100

EEA100%TT
Ordinary US$100

EAF100E T
Ordinary US$100

B 10075 T
Ordinary US$100

ERW2E T
Ordinary HK$2

ERakhe
REBDL
Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
“B-——-f C—T-TF
2011 2010
70 70
100 60
100 60
100 60
100 60
100 60
100 60

Principal

activities

REEER
iR %
Provision of
electrical and
mechanical
services

REER
Investment
holding

Investment
holding

AR
Investment

holding

Investment
holding

REER
Investment

holding

Investment
holding
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y
401 PNCL e P 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
EBTR
o HREMBE/
"4 BRAEE
S Nominal ARERE
MR EF L value of RERDL
Place of issued and Percentage
incorporation/ fully paid of equity IEEH
#18 registration registered/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations share capital the Company activities
“B—-f C—ET-%F
2011 2010

BREEERAA BiE ERER2ET 100 60 NERE
(Hist1k5) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property

Hiat Investment Limited investment
[nofes 1 and 5)

ENBRARAR &R ERR2ET 100 60 REZR
(BraE1k5) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment

Carriway Limited holding
[notes 1 and 5)

ERITERAF BiE LER2BT 100 60 REZR
(BraF1k5) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment

Fund House limited holding
[notes 1 and 5)

BENEEE (L) E/ 500,000% 7T 100 60 mEEE
BRAF (M1 - 3%5) A US$500,000 Property

Duncan Property Management PRC/ management
(Shanghai] Company Limited  Mainland China
[notes 1, 3 and 5)

HRERBRFEBE PE/ 5,000,000% 7T 100 60 mERE
RELERRAA hE A, US$5,000,000 Property
(BaE1 - 3k5) PRC/ investment

Shanghai China Garden Mainland China
Infernational Real Estate
Development & Management
Company limited
[notes 1, 3 and 5)

LRREBSFIHE PE/ 10,000,000% 7T 100 60 ESE
RELERRAA HEl At US$10,000,000 Property
(BiE1 - 3%k5) PRC/ development

Shanghai Changning Duncan ~ Mainland China
Property Development
Company Limited
[nofes 1, 3and ) £ 2010/2011 @
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=L

Name

LBBAREMERS

BRAR (K1 - 4%5)
Shanghai Duncan Property

Consulting Company
Limited (notes

BEFBAF (1)

Sparkle Key Limited (note 1)

it -

1, 4and 5)

M,
AR S B
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and operations

hE/

B At

PRC/

Mainland China

Hong Kong

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 ZE——%=F=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd]

BRMBRARE -

ETRHEEERES (REBQ
A IRRE 27 BE10E ;%752
TRHBFEEESFE 2 BRIRE
ZEEIERFRERI) - IFEER
BEAE FRE - MBEREREERE
WEBERREZANBH (RERH
ZEBBARRI - ZARZEBR
BEAVERERROEHRERER
P 53 & ££10,000B7% 7T) -

TR BUA G M 5N

5 &
75
ﬁ

£ g8
%-

F> ‘ﬂﬂﬂi}

T
&

£
BELE
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ToiR B o BUA G M A 50

ERTR
BrEMBAR/
RAEE
Nominal ERakhe
value of REBDL
issued and Percentage
fully paid of equity IEEH
registered/ attributable to Principal
share capital the Company activities
—E--§ C—EZ-%F
2011 2010
100,000 7T 100 60 AL ES
US$100,000 AR
Provision of
property
consultancy
services
Rl 97 97 REZK
10,000/ 7T Investment
Ordinary holding
HK$10,000

Notes:

1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed non-
cumulative dividend af the rate of 5% per annum for any financial year
during which the net profit of the relevant company available for dividends
exceeds HK$ 1 billion), no rights fo vote at general meetings, no rights to
receive any surplus on a return of capital on a winding-up (other than the
amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders of the ordinary
shares of that company have been distributed in such a winding-up of a
sum of HK$ 1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary share].

3. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under the
PRC law.

4. These enfities are registered as Sino-foreign joint ventures under the PRC

law.
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R=ZZ=ZF+—A+HA ' KQ7F
—HE2ENBRARBERBERRA
BEEEEEC0%BERNN B QR
(N@aZEERBRERARRENBEA
ALSERBEREHERELEER
NS (b) Allbright Investment
Limited R BB ARAL LI EBR A
Ak EBEEEHEZRANEGRAR
(c) Ironwood Pacific Limited &z £ it &
RAEBRREBERAA -
Federated Resources Limited & E Fff
BRAENBAERAR R LSREE
ERMERELELEHER QA Kl
Beneficial Enterprises Limited & £ Fff
BRAEBITARRAR BEENEE
B(EB)ERARMNBLEBRARA
A (G ER BEAO%ERENHBE A
))& amEEREXEEA(E
FDRINEERH  NERERE
300,000,000 7T (BIA% 10 A (B E2(E 75
REMEM MEALBEERES
60%E = M B R BIM40% R IER A
££94,087,000/8 TR R E R EF &
flzg - ARBEHBREEREEC0%E
ZRMBRARBFERARME (L8)
BRDAB([RHAREME]) 820%k
BB AEERBRBEEARAR
HER20%EE - WERN-T——F
—A+N\BREK -EE-ZT——F=
A=+—H8 ' B % 150,000,000/%
TR E - E# MK E150,000,000%5
TeRT A E e 308 (Fif7E29) » bt
WEERKRER S5 - Al - 8K
{€300,000,000/% 7T K& IF 7% i% f% 5 &
5 Y BF T (8 42 5281,567,0005% 7T £
FE¥R AR % 3R R 4 /Y B0 5794,087,00078
TLZ TR E 75 Z %8 75,664,000 LAl
ANEZFWREEFA

RZZ—ZTFENATNR  KRAE
B 3 2 & M B 2 7 Consco
Investment Company Limited
([Conscol) 1A 167,766,000 7 [ K
EEBRREERDRAIFFERKRERE
BILEER)BRAA([RER
I BEERRERBRAERRRE
Z220%%HE o HUERETAE - K
RERAREERARIKARARZE
BB AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

5.

On 15 November 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Duncan Properties Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with non-controlling equity holders (the “Vendors’) of each of then 60%-
owned subsidiaries, (a) China Garden International Limited and its
subsidiary, Shanghai China Garden International Real Estate Development
& Management Company Limited, [b] Allbright Investment Limited and its
subsidiaries, Red Shine Investment Limited and Shanghai Duncan Property
Consulting Company Limited, [c] Ironwood Pacific Limited and ifs
subsidiary, Hiaf Investment Limited, [d) Federated Resources Limited and its
subsidiaries, Carriway Limited and Shanghai Changning Duncan Property
Development Company Limited, and (e] Beneficial Enterprises limited and
its subsidiaries, Fund House Limited, Duncan Property Management
[Shanghai) Company Limited and Bestful Consultants Limited, (collectively
known as "Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries") to acquire from the Vendors
40% equity inferest in and the rights and benefits in the shareholders loans
of HK$94,087,000 in aggregate to the Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries for
the fotal cash consideration of HK$300,000,000, being the total of the
shares consideration and the debt consideration. Since the Vendors held
20% equity inferest of Tysan Land (Shanghai) Limited (“Tysan Land”] through
Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries, the Group also acquired 20% equity
interest of Tysan Land through the acquisition. The acquisition was
completed on 18 January 2011. Upto 31 March 2011, consideration of
HK$150,000,000 was paid and the remaining consideration of
HK$150,000,000 was included in other payable (note 29). Such
acquisition was accounted for as an equity fransaction. Accordingly, the
credit difference of HK$75,654,000 between the total consideration of
HK$300,000,000 and aggregate amounts of the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests, of HK$281,567,000 and the loans from non-
controlling shareholding of HK$94,087,000 were recorded in the
retained profits in the equity.

On 18 August 2010, Consco Investment Company Limited (“Consco”), a
then non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired additional
20% interest in its subsidiary, Tianjin International Building Company
Limited {"TIBC") from Tianjin Consfruction Engineering Group [Holding) Co.
ltd. ("TCE"), the non-controlling interest of TIBC, af a consideration of
HK$167,766,000. TIBC became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Consco
upon the complefion of such acquisition.

g3 2010/2011 @
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18. MBARER (&)

19.

fex - (&)

6. (#&)
RZZE—ZFXA+=B " KRFAZ
FE2ENBLARRAREERAA
((EAERE]) ARRAIZ2EWBA
&Stonehill Limited ([ Stonehill] ) & 58
ZHRE(RE)REBRRA([RE
(RER)VRE)E—RBILE=
HERE  MELERSAARAFE
2EWBARConsco R HM B A RIXR
REBAEERABNEZHRERE
BREFHEFNLEZ([HEF
H])  HEFBEER-_Z-—ZTF+A
ZHNHERER - RS ZFEBHRIT
KM FE40(a) ©

ERANZARAMBLRRAIREER
RUAEEZAFEREREAYE
IBRAEBARBODEEFEZME
A BEEZRR - FHIAEMKBAR
SIRATERAE °

N

._I

E)Ii

E

EIEEEFE
HF%'Z\\ jZﬁZT)\
_&/‘\ jzg

W e

BEQRZRFRELAR RERE

BETENE -
Bt& N Al 2 B3 & % 53,250,000/ 7T
(ZZE—Z4F : 2,450,000 7T) » AE

B 2SR EE T ERY -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Contd]

Notes: (Cont'd)
6. [Contd)

On 12 June 2010, Tianjin Development Company Limited, a non wholly-

owned subsidiary of the Company, Stonehill Limited , a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company, and Tian An [Tianjin] Investment Company

Limited ["TAIC"), a third party, enfered info a disposal agreement to dispose

of all of their equity interest in and the rights and benefits in the
shareholders’ loan to Consco, and its subsidiary, TIBC, o an independent
third party ("the Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 29 October
2010. Further details of the transaction are included in note 40(a) to the

financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the

opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or

formed a substantial portion of the nef assets of the Group. To give details

of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets
Amounts due from associates
Loans fo associates

Less: Impairment

£

GROUP
—F-—% _F-FF
2011 2010
F#T FibT
HK$'000 HK$'000
25,984 17,182
1,418 284
3,250 2,450
30,652 19,916
(304) (284
30,348 19 632

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interestfree and have

no fixed terms of repayment.

The loans to associates of HK$ 3,250,000 (2010: HK$2,450,000) are
unsecured, inferestree and has no fixed terms of repayment.



. BERNRER (A)

RE—HBMEARZERBREELSE
@~ 37 B & /524,560,000 7T (=
ZT—T4F 1 24,560,000 L) © BEIK
# 2EREEE_T——F=R=
+—HE+_EAREE-

REENESERFEREMNELE A
Rl BEGE DRI B ISR KM 3E24 %28
BE -

BERAEF I REEREE N TEMR

N

TRBERRZFBOT

=L

Name

NEBEEBRAT

Turbo Dragon Investment Limited

FARETIRARRAA
([RARETR]?

Tysan Building Consfruction
Company Limited ("TBC") #

REAREE(RM) BRAA
(PRFEF])*

Mac Tysan Construction
(Macau) Limited ("Mac Tysan”] #

ﬁ

EREmERERA D

A 5 4t e O

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

The loan from an associate included in the Group's non-current liabilities
of HK$24,560,000 (2010: HK$24,560,000) is unsecured, inferest-
free and will not be repayable within 12 months from 31 March 2011.

The Group's frade receivable and payable balances with the associates

are disclosed in notes 24 and 28 to the financial statements,

respectively.

The carrying amounts of the balances with associates approximate to

their fair values.

Particulars of principal associates are as follows:

PR B 81T AEEREGZ
RO FEREE BEREIL
Particulars Percentage
and nominal of ownership
valve  EEMRER % interest TEXH
of issued Place of attributable Principal
sharesheld  incorporation to the Group activities
B EK N 50 REER
HE1ET Hong Kong Investment
Ordinary holding
shares of
HK$1 each
BhE K N 49 RUETR
EE1ETT Hong Kong BETR
Ordinary Provision of
shares of building and
HK$1 each consfruction
works
B AR i 49 RERTR
H{E1VRMT Macau BETR
Ordinary Provision of
shares of building and
MOP1 each construction

works

#3% 2010/2011
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19. Bt N RER (&)

=1

Name

FATERREERADA
(IFFRITREERE)"
Tysan Project Management

Limited ["TPML"] #

REBFERAF
(ZREEZ])*
Tysan Trading Company Limited
("TTCL") *
# DEBEARALRBEFEZHEBA
Bl RZTZENFLAZTNAE &
% @ B\ R & 510,000 JT A Victor
Create Limited ([Victor Create] ) i &
ERFRREETIRER 1% 2RE - 2

B AEERAEZSERO% K
B ITERARETRESZRESEL
THEEBASHEEME - MR
ZEBBRRAKEZHERA - F
BRAHEZEMFBRRIBRE
Fit 3 40(b) i) °

* RIZE-ZTFEAAZFZ=AH ~%E
IA 481 {8 776,0005% 7T A1 AR 2 &) /R 4
EEHERAESZARI0%ERR
H 200,000 L2 KR E R 2 EF R
Fla - BRRNNER  AKERE
AE 57 WERG0%EEL0% WA
RABHEERERLTEZERK
ZEEER  MBRHREZEIN B
AEEZHERNR - BERKALEZ
Hith SR B B 3R K T s 40(b) (1) ©

FTRINHEZRRIBYELAEED
15 B 2 0 R A48 S AR % B P
ERRABOEZZASEERZQ
AEERA HNEMBERRS
SIBABBRITE -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'dl]

PrisE B17 AEBEEZ
REDHFBEREE BERADL
Particulars Percentage
and nominal of ownership
value  EEMBER L #E interest TEXH
of issued Place of attributable Principal
sharesheld  incorporation to the Group activities
LB BB 49 RHUETR
HE1ET Hong Kong BT
Ordinary Provision of
shares of building and
HK$1 each construction
works
BREBRK N0 40 —REH
[ERERNE Hong Kong General
Ordinary frading
share of
HK$1 each

#  These entities were the Company's subsidiaries in prior years. On 29 July
2009, the Group disposed of its 1% equity interest in TBC 1o Victor Create
Limited ["Victor Create”), at a consideration of HK$510,000. Subsequent
fo the disposal, the Group owned 49% equity interests in these enfities and
is no longer in a position fo cast the majority of the votes at the meetings of
the board of directors of TBC and accordingly, these entities became
associates of the Group. Further details of this disposal are included in note
40(b(ii) to financial statements.

On 22 September 2010, the Group disposed of in aggregate 10% inferest
in and the rights and benefits in the shareholder’s loan of HK$200,000 to
TTCL to two directors of the Company at a total consideration of
HK$776,000. Immediately after the disposal, the Group's equity interest in
TTCL reduced from 50% to 40% and the Group is no longer in a position fo
cast the majority of the votes in the meetings of the board of directors of
TTCL and accordingly, TTCL became an associate of the Group. Further
details of this disposal are included in note 40(b)(i) of financial statements.

The above fable lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion of
the directors, affected the Group's share of results of the associates or
formed a substantial portion of the Group's interests in associates. To give
details of other associates would, in the opinion of the directors, resultin
particulars of excessive length.
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. BELNRER (B) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Cont'd)

-

TRITHRARE@Y LA 0HE The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the
i&i‘%ZEﬂf; FIEE - Group's associates exiracted from their financial statements:
F 4 22— —T-TF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets 145,098 61,052
BE Liabilities 89,099 26,199
U Revenue 168,939 31,710
gl Profits 9,678 549
20. BAFEFTABERZRE 20. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
£8
GROUP
“E-—-f —ZT-ITF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
REBEELMZBNERE Listed equity investments in Hong Kong,
EmE at market value 4,183 4,002
RABEZIEETES - BWME  Unlisted fund in the PRC, af quoted price 118,750 —
122,933 4,002
FER-TB——FR-ZF-ZFF=H The above investments af 31 March 2011 and 2010 were classified as
ST -HZRECIRFHIEEER held for trading.
;L% <
21. 8 21. INVENTORIES
£8
GROUP
“E-—-f —ZT-ITF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
JR&} Raw materials 2,559 5,644
T REAM Spare parts and others 9,065 20,266

11,624 25,910

=% 2010/2011 @
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N
b
22. BEREEZWE 22. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE -~
B8
GROWP
—E-—-F W2TF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
F9) At beginning of year 197,649 473,876
BEAERTYE Transfer from properties
(B3E16) under development [nofe 16) 449,329 104,196
FRAHEZME Properties sold during the year (210,148) (384,143)
bE 5 55 2 Exchange realignment 2,739 3,720
FR Atend of year 439,569 197,649
AEERFEHEEZMEMLRTERA The Group's properties held for sale are located in Mainland China and
R ARPEOFE are held under long term leases.
23. BEEN 23. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
B
GROUP
—E-—F —_T-FTF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
EPEBEHNIRZIAR Amounts due from customers for confract works 88,407 92,639
REPEMBEHNIR ZHIE Amounts due to customers for contract works (224,428) (201,434)
(136,021) (108,795]
FTEEZ AL AMBEERTFR Contract costs incurred plus recognised
BHE®REMRDERBEE  profits less recognised losses to date 4,489,462 3,465,074
B B R BRI less: Progress billings received and receivable (4,625,483)  (3,573,869)
(136,021) (108,795]

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers
other than for refention receivables are within 90 days, and are subject
fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group's frade receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

£E
GROUP

—E——F —T-%F

2011 2010

FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEW B 58 Trade receivables 454,764 397,471
HE Impairment (30) (30)

454,734 397,441

W E 5 8RR B AR Z 2 RR

18 5,696,0008 T (Z & — & F
601,0008 L) * EEREE l%f%%\,%ﬁ

FTARREEERPOKRTMEE

NBEZAHLBREETE  BKE
PEFNBERARZERANMOT

Included in the trade receivables are amounts due from associates of
HK$5,696,000 [2010: HK$601,000), which are repayable on
similar credit terms fo those offered to the major customers of the Group.

An aged analysis of the frade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:

£8
GROUP

—E——-F —T-ZF

2011 2010
FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEY B 58 Trade receivables:

90HA Within Q0 days 309,538 282,348
91HZE180H 91 to 180 days 1,715 1,759
181H 2 360H 181 to 360 days 3,294 1,643
3608 LA £ Over 360 days 875 32
315,422 285,782

R E S Retention receivables 139,312 111,659
454,734 397,441

=% 2010/2011 @
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24. BWE SRR (&)
EHRESEFRERE 2 EHNT -

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
b
receivables are as follows:

E3L]

GROUP
25 C—=2-FF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
F9) At beginning of year 30 828
EHRREEE Impairment losses recognised - 140
HsE B AIE 2 5RIB Amount written off as uncollectible - (844)
HEMHB QA Disposal of subsidiaries - (94)
Fe At end of year 30 30

AL ENRESESRZRERES
30,0008 7T (= — T 4 : 30,000/
7T) B AR EWKE 5 R ML B ER
BRE#E 530,000 (CE—F 4
30,000/ 7T)  ERIE HERKE S K
REENUBRE EFER - B
BER AT o

BRI TREZEREZEFR R

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade receivables of
HK$30,000 (2010: HK$30,000] is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$30,000 (2010: HK$30,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were in financial
difficulties and none of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered fo be

oM impaired is as follows:
EJE]
GROUP

25 —ZT-FF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
SR 58 B T B RUE Neither past due nor impaired 448,850 394,007
EAH1HZ90R 1 to 90 days past due 1,715 1,759
2i@#91 B £270R 91 to 270 days past due 3,294 1,643
EiaHE®270R More than 270 days past due 875 32
454,734 397,441

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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FrwE SRR (g 24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

MEBHMERE BUHKIEERE Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
TR NE LN TREE A - number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of

y ERBEVEREZ BEFREEAE default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
BAEEEER IR FIRHENBLER number of independent customers that have a good track record with the
FRE - KEAEKR  FRAES Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of
RE ANCESEVEERZHEA the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
BEDERT2HKD - HHELE these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
NRSEFELRERE - FEEY quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
ERZEREEREEMERIRESH Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over
iz g these balances.

25. HMEWFRIE « FEFRIERETE®  25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

&H R

GROUP COMPANY
- —T-TF —TTNF Z%--F —T-%F
ZA=t-B=A=1—H MA—B =ZA=t—-H ZA=1—H
31 March 31 March 1Al 31 March 31 March
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
TR T T TERL TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

(£235])  (KES))

[Restated) [Restated)
AR FERTE Prepayments and deposits 16,437 27,670 18,403 138 137
Efto e BB Other receivables 391 26497 12,555 - =
48,348 54,167 30,958 138 137
HMELREES BBMILFRRE - 5 None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The financial
ALEFEz cMEERY BIHE assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which
NES 2 BRTIAER - there was no recent history of default.

=% 2010/2011 @
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26. FTESRT A

£8
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26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS_

GROUP

k"
= mt Lt
2011 2010
EE a8 BE BfE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
FET FEx TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHINE R RBEHE  Forward currency accumulators 87 26 12 293
| 2 4 B Interest rate swaps - 5,821 — 1,453
87 5,847 12 1,746
HEAEMNBMNES : Portion classified as non-current:
| 2 f1 B Inferest rate swaps - (5,821) — (1,453)
NEE 2 Current portion 87 26 12 293
AEBECATUZERMINERTTRE The Group has entered info various forward currency accumulators
BEHENERY  NERETNTE contracts and interest rate swaps to manage its foreign currency and
HhaiRERE 2z EREXR exchange rate exposures which did not meet the criteria for hedge
o SEHMOTAETAZ AT REES accounting. Changes in the fair value, nef, of non-hedging derivatives
40260008 T (—Z T — T F amounting to HK$4,026,000 (2010: HK$1,734,000) were charged
1,734,000 7T) Dat AF R 2 Ba@ K fo the income sfatement during the year. The carrying amounts of those
NeZESeMIAZEREREAQYF financial instruments are the same as their fair values. The above
BEE - FROTEERIAEMIRS fransactions involving derivative financial instruments are conducted with
DEEERIFAMHBOELZSR creditworthy financial insfitutions with no recent hisfory of default.

BB -

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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CHeRATEST  EMEHRT  27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TIME DEPOSITS AND
PR&EIRE / RESTRICTED CASH

o %
4 ' GROUP
P E 2§ —ZT-TF
Notes 2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EHRER: Time deposits:
—EmESER — other time deposits () 491,652 952,375
—EEBEEFER — structured deposits (b) 296,875 —
THGFRERE Total time deposits c) 788,527 052,375
ReRiBITES Cash and bank balances [a) 321,484 396,865
XREIFEE Restricted cash (d) 56,286 114,180
1,166,297 1,463,420
AT E®5IE - Denominated in:
e United States dollar ("USD") 2,203 7,104
BT Euro ("EUR") 10,273 3,878
BT Macao potacas [“MOP”) 314 349
AR Renminbi ("RMB) 801,701 1,308,002
BT Japanese yen ("YEN") - 26
AT HK$ 351,806 143,971
1,166,297 1,463,420
ARBIUEHAGAEMER + A RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
- RBIMNEERED REE - EE Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
ENEEERRE ARERERBE Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
RIEETIEEBZRT BAR® Regulations, the Group is permitted fo exchange RMB for other
RBBEMEE - currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange

business.

=% 2010/2011 @
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27. BERBITEE  EHERRE
REBE (&

it

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RITEFREARTERNEFEZ
FHAERRAE - EHERAAT
RzGEFHR  mERE=ZF1%F
BIAKEZANBREFRME - I
REMZERTHRMNERRA S - R
THERF&FEALEAPEOES
ZEBEEZRIT -

wEEERAAEETHBHRE
B S A RS - BRI
RAEERETEET 22 ERE
MRS - AEEEBBERER
RREAREEIH -

EERABIVEREN=E A%
H 2 F HTF 119,262,000/ 7T (=
T—T 4 : 235,392,000/ 7T) °

R-Z——FZ/A=+—8 " BE+H
BAEEER  RIETRTEFRETE
ERRFNEZETEORTS - E7
BRZER@mE RZT—TF=
A=+—08 XRHB\SERELE
BT EEZRRFERTERIT
RPZTHER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . Y

27. CASH AND BANK BALANCES, TlMiE‘DI_EPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (Cont'd)

Notes: e

(a)

(b)

(d)

L
ok

k"

Cash af banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days
and three years depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest af the respective fime deposit rates. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

The structured deposits are time deposits with fixed maturity dates and are
stated at amortised cost. The interest rates on the structured deposits
fluctuated based on changes in currency exchange rate between USD and
HKS$. The Group uses structured deposits primarily fo enhance the refurn on
investment.

Included in the balance are time deposits of HK$ 119,262,000 (2010:
HK$235,392,000) of which the original maturity is more than three
months when acquired.

Asat 31 March 2011, pursuant fo relevant regulations in the PRC, certain
deposits received from the pre-sale of properties under development under
a designated bank account can only be used for the construction of the
relevant properties. As af 31 March 2010, restricted cash represented time
deposits maintained in escrow bank accounts pursuant to the terms of the
Group's banking facilities.
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- BB SRR

EZFEE’r

NEZAHHE BNESRANR

SHRRZERERATMOT -

EREHERMN : Trade payables:
30B I Within 30 days
31HZE90H 110 90 days
91H £180H 9110 180 days
1808 A L Over 180 days

FERHRE 2 Retention payables

et 5 Accruals

ENESERBARE  —REFY
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HiEMNHE - CRET R AN

FRIE

ZE

A%

;>E&

Hih B REBEH AR E - FHEHH
AR M—Z2ENEFRE
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28. TRADE PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
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31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

An aged analysis of the trade payables as atf the end of the reporting

period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

%8 )

GROUP COMPANY
—g-—% -T-TF —B-—% -T-IF
2011 2010 201 2010
FHT FET  FER FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
173,630 98,525 13 10
3,407 3,718 2 —
203 48] - -
7,753 10,168 - —
184,993 112,892 15 10
105,250 112,894 - —
190,716 150,743 789 877
480,959 376,529 804 887

The trade payables are nonvinterest-bearing and are normally settled on
90-day ferms.

Included in the trade payables were amounts due to associates of
HK$124,000 as at 31 March 2010, which were of similar credit terms

o those offered by the associates fo their major customers.

ADVANCE

29. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS IN

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of

one month except for an amount payable to Vendors of
HK$ 150,000,000 which will be paid on or before 31 December
2011

=% 2010/2011 (i)
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30. 2WET & 30.

RZZE——F=ZA=+—0 B
CERBRRTOEBRERONES
HEHENEHERNRAETPKEZ
A ARERMENEERBEHERE
EVME - dAREEFITARL Bt
REEREAHNEK  BPFARAKHE
XilE - AEEMBEZZELR

DEPOSITS RECEIVED

e,
As at 31 March 2011, deposits received repres-ented down payment
received from customers upon signing of the pre- le contracts of
properties under development and sale contracts of properties held for
sale of the Group. The Group conducted the pre-sale of properties when
they were still under development. As contracted with custfomers,
deposits were paid to the Group upon the signing of the pre-sale
contracts. Such amounts held by the Group are non-interestbearing.

i’ﬂﬁﬁ/é\ °
31. fTERITEE 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
£8 GROUP
SF--FZf=t-8 “P-TEZf=+-F “EENFRA-A
31 March 2011 31 March 2010 1 April 2000
ERA% ik ERfIE
Effective Effective Effective
interest inferest inferest
rafe il Tin fafe HR FEL fale R T
(% Mahrity  HK$'000 (%) Maturity — HK$°000 %) Maturity — HK$'000
EER Unsecured:
FITER Bank loans 1424 2012-2015 371,472 1.1-1.8 2010-2015 388,560 1458 2009-2012 222,808
AR Secured:
ERAREER Trustreceipt loans - - - - - — 2151 2009 43,000
FITER Bank loans 1.7 2012-2014 21,250 1.32.5 2010-2014 233,040 1.69.1 2009-2012 285,428
AHER Instalment loans 0.8 2011-2022 67,992 0.7 2010-2022 83,175 1.4:5.0 2009-2022 88,194
89,242 316,215 416,622
FEEERE Total bank borrowings 460,714 704,775 639,430

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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RIETHIRE 2
AR THHEAEE
TR ¢
R—FARIRBLKE

on demand
% F In the second year
E=FEFHF In the third fo fifth years,
(BEEEWE) inclusive

HBERF Beyond five years

ARN—FRNEE Portion due within one year,
PERTHEE N classified as current liabilities

REE D long term portion

MWK TA4PTE— SRR - |
RENELREESRIFHREXZZ5
—ERALEE TR ERIEE KN
CEHERZAE N_F——FR
“E-ZE-F=1-H AXKEE
EAREEREERRIRZRITER
20,582,000/ 7T }% 205,616,000/ 7T ¥
EEHDBARPARG - LA
& ZFRTERSFFAABHH S
BIEE  UAMARN—FARRKRE
KEBZERMNRITEN -

ﬁ:
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

Analysed info:
Bank borrowings repayable:

Within one year or

—E-—% ZET-TF CTEINF
ZR=+—-H =ZA=t+—H mA—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2011 2010 2009
FHET FET FHET
(#EZE3l) (#Z&E3)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[Restated) (Restated)

128,382 400,153 521,056
85,937 53,305 Q4,405
215,322 251,317 23,969
31,073 — —
460,714 704,775 639,430
(128,382) (400,153 (521,0506)
332,332 304,622 118,374

As further explained in note 44 to the financial statements, due fo the

adoption of HK Interprefation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements -

Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment

on Demand Clause, the Group’s bank loans in the amount of
HK$20,582,000 and HK$205,616,000 as at 31 March 2011 and
2010, respectively, containing a repayment on demand clause have

been reclassified as current liabilities. For the purpose of the above

analysis, these bank loans are included within current interest-bearing

bank borrowings and analysed into bank loans payable within one year

or on demand.

=% 2010/2011 @
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31. MESRITEE (&) 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

RIBRITERZEHEBAR - BERT
ERCEERESEAR HRZT——F
F—T-—TEZA=Z+-—BZAR—
F Nk ik Z KX ,2107,800,0007%8 7T
K% 194,637,0008 7 : RZT——F R
ZE-TF-A=F+-HZEAREZ
F ¥ & 2Z 96,091,000 1w X
117,706,000 7C : RZT——F k=
E-ZF=-A=+—HZEARE=F
ZERF(BREEMFE) XN
225,750,000% 7T K& 356,145,000/
T RIE——FRZT-FF=H
=+—BAZARBAFNLEZNZ
31,073,000/% 7T ) 36,387,007 7T °

AEBEBBRTEENAAEER
WEHIR 2 IREED A4142,002,000
B (ZZF — T F : 149,893,000
JC) + 18,500,000 L (Z T —ZTF :
369,340,0008 L) R T (ZT—ZTF -
114,180,000 /L) 2 & T Lt R 1
FoOREBHEKSE (14  REWME
(P32 15) RZ R HIR & (P 5527) 1E1K
ﬁ o

RNEE 7 HiKHE1TEE9,600,000/8
T(ZE—ZF : T) ABEEFRIT
HE BT IR LR o

N\
2010/2011 Annual Report
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Based on the maturity ferms of the bank loans, the amounts repayable in
respect of the bank loans are: HK$107,800,000 and
HK$194,537,000 payable within one year or on demand as at 31
March 2011 and 2010, respectively; HK$96,091,000 and
HK$ 117,706,000 payable in the second year as at 31 March 2011
and 2010, respectively; HK$225,750,000 and HK$356,145,000
payable in the third to fifth years, inclusive as at 31 March 2011 and
2010, respectively; HK$31,073,000 and HK$36,387,000 payable
beyond five years as at 31 March 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The Group's secured bank borrowings were secured by certain of its land
and building, equipment and machinery (note 14), investment properties
(note 15) and restricted cash (note 27) with carrying amounts of
HK$142,002,000 (2010: HK$149,893,000], HK$ 18,500,000
(2010: HK$369,340,000) and nil (2010: HK$114,180,000),
respectively, at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's secured bank borrowing amounting to HK$9,600,000
(2010:Nil) is guaranteed by the government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrafive Region.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted to certain of the Company's subsidiaries

(note 38(al).

All of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating inferest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate fo their

A o fair values.
AEENZEEBREMZRITEE The carrying amounts of the Group's bank borrowings denominated in
FREENT : various currencies are as follows:
2§ —ZT-TF
2011 2010
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT Hong Kong dollars 445,325 695,368
BT Euro 15,389 9,407
460714 704,775

£ 2010/2011
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32.

IEFET IR

REEEAR  BELEHBRBEREEL

EHmmT -

EAEFIERE

8

RZZEZTNFNA—A

ERNNBRERNG
ZIERTIR
(HtzE10)

[ 5 A%

R-T—ZTF
=A=+—-8k
—T-ZFWA—-A

FRAREBREERMNG
ZIETERIA
(MtzE10)

S BB A
B 2 &
MmE 2 BB

HE—RHHBAR
(HfzE40(a))
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32. DEFERRED TAX

as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

o

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets d{Jring the year are

GROUP
REELAH
EXr wERD
REME Allowance
Revaluation in excess ANHR
of investment of related  Withholding At
properties  depreciation taxes Total
FHET FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A 1 April 2009 (251,395] (8,056) (18,968] (278,419]
Deferred tax charged fo
the income statement
during the year (nofe 10) (17,665] (2,165) (44,669) (64,499]
Exchange realignment (1,844 — (265) (2,109)
At 31 March
2010 and
1 April 2010 (270,904) (10,221) (63,902) (345,027)
Deferred tax charged fo
the income stafement
during the year (nofe 10) (4,472) (6,671) (45,019 (56,162
Withholding tax paid on
repafriation of eamings
from PRC subsidiaries — — 4,176 4,176
Disposal of a subsidiary
(note 40]al) 208,849 — Q04 209,753
Exchange realignment (7,610] — (134) (7,744)
At 31 March 2011 (74,137 (16,892] (103,975] (195,004)
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. IRIERLIE (&) 32. DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d)

BT IEEE Deferred tax assets
= GROUP

T R E B R
Provision of land
appreciation tax

FET
HK$'000
RZZEZNAFMA—A At 1 April 2009 29,051
FARTABRRZ Deferred tax credited to the income statement
BT IA (H5E10) during the year (note 10) 33,633
0 5B Exchange realignment 387
RZE-—FF=A=+—H At 31 March 2010
k_Z-—ZTFMOA—H and 1 April 2010 63,071
FRFABRRZ Deferred tax credited to the income statement
e A (M FE10) during the year (note 10) 33,770
DE 5 R Exchange realignment 3,305
R-_ZE——F=A=+—H At 31 March 2011

100,146

AEBREBELEZHEEFERA
204,421,0008 &L (Z &2 — T &
238,158,000/ ) + A A {E MR AR 4K
HHBEEBEBZRRZARERM &
Fl e REEAEBBEHBRARMEL
CHEBERATERARELEHEE
E-ARERTRFNANFERES
BWARER AT 8L o

BREFEEEMERE ([RERER
#]) - MR BRI WINE R ER
ENREESR BB ALMI0%E
mig - ZEREH_TENF—H—
AEARYERR _TELF+ A
ST-HZERELEZAM - WPEX
WHENEERRE R AERFT AR
BHE - RIFREERBRE 2 EARR
o Ry AEEARERDE AL
RIIZWBARRE-FTENFE—A
—HEELZANMMARKE ZKE
fmIamm o

ARRENTRREZ RS LM
FEBER -

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$204,421,000
(2010: HK$238,158,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses
as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be ufilised.

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax ("CIT") Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007 . A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by its subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences aftaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

#3% 2010/2011
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33. A& 33. SHARE CAPITAL
R Shares \
£B8
GROUP
—E-—F —T-FF
2011 2010
FHT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR Authorised:
2,000,000,0000% & M 2,000,000,000 ordinary shares
EE0.10B T2 Tk of HK$0.10 each 200,000 200,000
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
870,115,903 (ZZ—Z & : 870,115,903
845,315,903f%) & R EAE (2010: 845,315,903)
0108 T2 & Bk ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 87,011 84,531

FR - BAARNBBREETEM AR
BETRBL(ZT—FF : 082
BIT) RRBESR .46 T BRI
23,800,000/ (= Z—Z4 : 7,100,000
f%) & 1,000,000 i (ZZ —ZF : &)
BREEI0E T kG - BRERE
520,976,000 L (Z T — T F
5,822,000/ 70) (MK F X A1) - B
11,023,000 T (=T — T F
3,746,000 7T) 2 SRIEE R EETT
FREOEREREERZROEE
E\E °

BRE

ANRIBREE 2 FBHRY KR
RMFFE34 -

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

During the year, 23,800,000 (2010: 7,100,000) shares of HK$0.10
each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$0.82 (2010:
HK$0.82) per share and 1,000,000 (2010: Nil) shares of HK$0.10
each were issued for cash at a subscription price of HK$ 1.46 per share
pursuant fo the exercise of the Company’s share options for a fotal cash
consideration, before expenses of HK$20,976,000 (2010:
HK$5,822,000]. An amount of HK$11,023,000 (2010:
HK$3,746,000) was transferred from the share option reserve fo the
share premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.
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BAZAERSEEREANAZES
(BRBIUFHNTES) RAKEEM

B Al RFAR IR ket IR 2 M R AT
BRESSHE  AATBBEAR
AMEARREE HETRN210% °

KARZHEBEMT
B &

Purpose

2mE

Participants

A PR EBREHENFRER
AEMEEBTREAZABD L

Total number of ordinary shares available for
issue and the percentage of the issued share
capital that it represents as at the
date of the annual report

BR2EERREE
Maximum entitlement of each participant

BEBRIENAREBES CBHR
Period within which the securities
must be taken up under an option

P T
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company currently operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and other employees of
the Group.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted fo
be granfed under the Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time.

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as follows:

REBAERZ2EENEHALNR B BERIELRERE - RNER
ENZEEHBHRERMERZ ARRAEBER -

To encourage eligible participants to perform their best in achieving the
goals of the Company while af the same time allow them to share the
fruits of the Company's business achieved through their effort and
confribution.

ARASIHEMMBLRRZITEAR  EEREF (BRWTES
RIERITES) o

Executives or employees or directors [including both executive directors
and non-executive directors) of the Company or any of ifs subsidiaries.

37,196,590 iz @A M B #HITIRARZ 4.3% °
37,196,590 ordinary shares and 4.3% of the issued share capital.

NMEEBREM12EA PR ARREETREAZ 1% -
Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

REFETRANGFLARA - BRMEMER T T BRI L ERE
ERRTFEA  EXBRERENELZERR -

Defermined and notified by the directors fo each grantee, but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of options
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

#3% 2010/2011
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34. BRESTE (&)
AABZEEBBENT : ()
RITIE AT LB R A B E 2 IEHIR

Minimum period for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

IR AN 9 500R
Amount payable on acceptance

BETEECEE

Basis for defermining the exercise price

Bl ZBTFH

The remaining life of the Scheme

BREY EE THAEARRKRERR
BRAE LIREZHER -

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) .

L
ok

A summary of the Scheme of the Company is as féllovyks: (Cont'd)

i-..

REFETREARNBRAELOX M S -
To be defermined by the directors and included in the relevant
offer leffers.

% o
Nil.

RESFET  BUARUTZESERD ZEE @ (IRBFR
HEREER (BAREXR)  EBRMIMERRABERRZK
TE RMNEERLEREPHAIDLELER - TREROEA
A&z FHRME -

Determined by the directors but must be the highest of (i) the nominal
value of shares; (ii] the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a business day; and |iii] the average
closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant of options.

AEERER BEEZT--FN\AZTER-
The Scheme remains in force until 27 August 2012.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote
at shareholders’ meetings.
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F1) At beginning of year

FRK L Granted during the year

FRITRE Exercised during the year
FRKM lapsed during the year
FR Atend of year
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
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The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme during

the year:
—E——F —ZT-%F
2011 2010
¥ 13 InEF 55
TEE BRE IfEE B
Weighted £ 4= Weighted 2H
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
5259 F 574 T
B ‘000 BT ‘000
HK$ HK$
per share per share
0.82 26,350 0.82 34,250
1.46 3,000 - -
0.85 (24,800) 0.82 (7,100)
- - 0.82 (800)
1.10 4,550 0.82 26,350

£ 2010/2011 Ci)



:H' TYSAN HOLDINGS LIMITED

W B FE W NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . -
31 March 2011 —$——%#=B=+—8 .
o
.\:‘
34. BRESHE (&) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Conf'd]" . -
RBERR - mARTEBREZITRE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options outstanding
BRITEDEMNT as at that end of the reporting period are as follows:
—E——-F —T-TF
2011 2010
EREHRE BREZE TEE* 1T HAR
Number of options Number of options Exercise price* Exercise periods
F T BRET
‘000 ‘000 HK$ per share
“EE+FAAAA
E-T-——%7\A=-t=H
- 1,375 0.82 59-2007 10 23-8-2011
—ZETLFAARE
E-T-——%7\A=-t=H
- 625 0.82 6-9-2007 10 23-8-2011

—ETEFNAZT A

22T ——FN\A=Z+=H

- 2,000 0.82 27-9-2007 t0 23-8-201 1
—EELFNA=TH

22T ——FN\A=Z+=H

450 850 0.82 30-8-2007 t0 23-8-201 1
—EENFNAZTHNH

22T ——FN\A=Z+=H

450 6,400 0.82 24-8-2008 to 23-8-201 1
—EENFNAZTHNAH

22T ——FN\A=Z+=H

450 6,550 0.82 24-8-2009 to 23-8-201 1
—E-ZFENAZ+HNH

22T ——FN\A=Z+=H

1,200 8,550 0.82 24-8-201010 23-8-2011
—T——FNA+EAR

E-T-—FhnA+H

1,000 — 1.46 17-9-2011t0 169-2012
—ZT——FNA+tAR

E-E-ZFNA+~H
]

1,000 — 1.46 7-9-2012 10 169-2013
4,550 26,350 1.10
o OBREZITEREAR MRS RE *  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of
17 AR RIS E A O E B rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
TEHEE - capital.

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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EREZEREZATEAR
15,798,000/ 7t (517 0.26/% 7L £ 0.60
AL ERAKSEENE AERER
fEF % 570,000 L (Z2—ZF :
2,054,000 7T) °

FARL 2 BEREZAFESE
1,177,000% 7T (17 0.3% ;T £0.46/%
7T c ERAEBEERFRERERE
B2 647,000/ 7T °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2008 was HK$ 15,798,000 (HK$0.26 to HK$0.60 each), of
which the Group recognised a share option expense of HK$570,000
(2010: HK$2,054,000) during the year.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
HK$ 1,177,000 (HK$0.3 to HK$0.46 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$647,000 during the year.

The fair value of equity-seftled share options granted during the year was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model, taking into
account the ferms and conditions upon which the options were granted.
The following table lists the major inputs to the model used:

B smagsmadH

———

NA++H

17 Sepfember

A Date of grant 2010
B & (%) Dividend yield (%) 3.4
TR 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 6]
2 B BRI 2 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 0.654
BIRETREEE () Expected life of option (year) 3
InEFHRE (BARETT) Weighted average share price (HK$ per share] 1.43

R-ZTETZAFNA-+TIAE %
800,000 BB EN —HIEEBIKREE
L

F 17 £24,800,000(0 (ZF—FF :
7,100,00017) #E A% #8503 1724,800,000
B (ZZ—2Z4 : 7,100,0000%) &R &) &E
B - %2,480,00087C (ZE—FF ¢
710,000/ 7T) 9 ¥ % 75 J2 18,496,000%
JT (ZZ—F4F : 5,112,000 7T) H B 1H
B (R ETHEZAD - FEEHRUH
WEMIFESS -

On 24 June 2009, a total of 800,000 share options lapsed upon

resignation of an employee.

The 24,800,000 (2010: 7,100,000) share options exercised during
the year resulted in the issue of 24,800,000 (2010: 7,100,000)
ordinary shares of the Company and new share capital of
HK$2,480,000 (2010: HK$710,000] and share premium of
HK$18,496,000 (2010: HK$5,112,000) (before issue expenses), as

further detailed in note 33 to the financial statements.
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34.

35.

BRESE (&)

REBEBRR ARAIREFEA
4,550,00013 (ZZ—Z 4 : 26,350,000
) BRERMRITE - REARERT
BALERE  2EOEEMRTECER
T 1% 8 BUAR 2 A] BB 1N 974,550,000 %
(ZE—ZF F : 26,350,0000% ) & i@
A%+ BBIMNIR AR A455,0008 T (Z T —
T4 1 2,635,000 L) B EE (30
Br¥1TRH X AT) 54,556,000 L (ZF
—Z4 18,972,000 7T) °

REEHE  —RESAFEAH
750,00017 f& A& 1 - BHUR D AT
750,000% E BB AR - LR AFIE
75,0007 7T % f% 17 34 {8 540,000/ T °

RBEZENBERERER  BREF
gl - N2 8FE3,800,00000 (ZE—F
% :23,350,0001n ) AR R M RATHE
BARBEAEEITRMNHN04% (ZF
—Ei : 2.8%) °

]
(a) ZEH

NAREERBAEEREERFKE
CHENEEPNITBREE17E
FIBHAZGAEZEHRETY -

REFHNEGELEZBBADK
B - 75 7 AP B R A 2 P B
ARZEMBREERERTE R
B2 EE R -
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34.

35.

=

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 4,550,000
(2010: 26,350,000) share options outstanding under the Scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of 4,550,000
(2010: 26,350,000| additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$455,000 (2010: HK$2,635,000) and
share premium of HK$4,556,000 (2010: HK$18,972,000) before

issue expenses.

Subsequent fo the end of the reporting period, a fotal of 750,000 share
options were exercised by a director, resulting in the issue of 750,000
ordinary shares of the Company with additional new share capital of

HK$75,000 and share premium of HK$540,000.

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company had
3,800,000 (2010: 23,350,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.4% [2010: 2.8%) of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 46 of the financial
statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign joint
venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are registered in the PRC has been transferred fo
statutory reserves which are resfricted as fo use.



. R (&)

(b) ’Z\‘ﬁa(f

RZEAE A Apil 2009

mA-H
KEREN  Pofitfor he yeor
ER2ENRE  Totol comprehensive income
% for he year
HAEZERE Lquitysetled share opfion
Zi arrangemenfs
TRBHRE  bercise of shore opfions

BERREMA 2009 fincl dividend
ZEENE  dedored
RERE  ondpoid

ZE-ZE  2010interim
HERE dividend

RZZ-FF  A31 Morch2010
ZR=1-8 ond ] Api 2010
R-Z-%%

mA-A

KEREN  Pofitfor the yeor

EMRE  Tolol comprehensive income
BHBE  forheyear

RAEERE  Lquitysefled shore

REZH opfion artangemens
IEBRE  Bercise of share options
BERRLM 2010 final dividend

ZE5-5F  dedored

AERE  ondpoid
2011 inferim
HERE dividend

RZZ——% A 31 March 2011
ZA=t-H
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35. RESERVES (Cont'd)

(b) Company

T EY EI TN PR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

REER/
RiVEER ERERE  (Z5FR)
Shore NG Share  Retained profits/
premium  Confributed opfion  {occumulated Ch)
Nofes account surplus reserve loss| Totol
i3 TEL TEL T T T
Hk$ 000 Hk$ 000 Hk$ 000 Hk$ 000 HK$:000
519,253 29,950 12,642 (24 561,821
- - - 29,998 29,998
- - - 29,998 29,998
- - 2,054 - 2,054
33,34 8,858 - 3,746) - 5112
12 - - - (12573 (12,573)
12 - - - (12,588 (12,588
528,111 29,950 10,950 4813 573,824
- - - 202977 202977
- - - 202,977 202,977
- - 1217 - 1217
33,34 29519 - (11,023 - 18,496
12 - - - (25472 (25472
12 - - - (17,048 (17,048
557,630 29,950 1,144 165,270 753,994

=% 2010/2011
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35. @ (&) 35. RESERVES (Cont'd)
(b) 227 (#&) (b) Company (Cont'd) 3

=,

ARAHABBIERA DA D
LHE - RER-AN—F2&
EEEMBAZHEBRRIRD A
FE - BRBARE D H#ITRN
ZEEZHE - RE-AN—F
BREQAE  EETHERT
AREAEBHARBDIK TR
wo

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant o the
Group reorganisation in 1991 prior fo the listing of the Company's
shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange therefor. Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of the
contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

36. WEMBENZH 36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) TEBHBEA

(a] As lessor

ARERELEHOTY - UHE
NEBNFREL+ZER
MEE T (M E14) REKRE
mx (MaE15) o BAEFR—RI
EXBPREPXNERTE R
REFTRATHEHESHE -

RBERR  AEEREEEE
FPREPRLZ A HHLZH
MRA TN B 2 KRR &K U
TRBMT

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 14) and its
investment properties (note 15] under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from six to
seventy two months. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants and customers to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rental adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

£
GROUP

—E-—F —T-TF

2011 2010

FET FET

HK$000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 16,275 65,011
E_ZFERF In the second fo fifth years,

(BEERME) inclusive 1,627 35,857

17,902 100,868

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)

(b) 'f'f—:;%?/( (b) As lessee
AEERBELEHEORY - UAE The Group leases certain of its office properties, warehouses, staff

NEWUNT+==X+EA &
METHMOEYNHF ER BT
BERETHES -

REEHR - AEERES AR

HEEHANATFH 2 RER
EROMNTERDT

quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from twelve
fo sixty months.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

&8
GROUP

—E-—-f —T-FF

2011 2010

FET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 11,231 8,724
F_EERHF In the second to fifth years,

(BREERMF) inclusive 10,711 5,868

21,942 14,592

ARANBRERRY EEFMLE
BORHE(CT—FF 8 -

The Company did not have any operating lease arrangement af the
end of the reporting period (2010: Nil).

=% 2010/2011 @
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37. A 37. COMMITMENTS '
.\-\\'-
BR b SCP 5F 36 (0) 5 it 2 45 & 78 49 A HE In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 36(b)
O RBEBR - NREBEBEREE above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
(I the reporting period: 4
3]
GROUP
B C—ZT-FF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$000 HK$'000
BEE - BRITLH Authorised, but not contracted for
ME - MBERRE Property, plant and equipment - 9,798
BEEI4 - BRIERE Contracted, but not provided for
ME - BB RRE Property, plant and equipment 196,194 52,563
196,194 62,361
AN REBRBERPWEZEH In addition, the Group had contracted, but not provided for, commitments
BREBBZAENR_T——F=H in respect of consfruction works relating fo properties under development
=+ —H A&153,763,0008 70 (=& — amounting to HK$ 153,763,000 (2010: HK$226,952,000) as at 31
TF 1 226,952,000 ) ° March 2011,
RB|EBMR - KRR BERAE (Z The Company had no significant commitments af the end of the reporting
T—TF @\)o period (2010: Nil).

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
HEEHZHIABENT provided for in the financial statements were as follows:
£8 N
GROUP COMPANY
2§ —"T-TF ZB--H —T-ITF
2011 2010 2011 2010
TET FHET FET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A B Guarantees given fo financial
FﬂbKTAiTﬁtu”j institutions in connection
—RIEEEH with general credit facilities
e T 2 R granted fo:
~HERF - subsidiaries - — 973304 1,406,398
— BN - an associate 20,000 — 20,000 —
ELRES Guaranfees in respect of
RGP L performance bonds 175,691 135,154 175,691 135,154
195,691 135,154 1,168,995 1,541,552

RZZEZNEXA+A K&
BrREEmE—FPRARER
([ B8R ]) IR - By e
FZFRIZERORBEARKE
5,180,0007T ( 476,151,000 7T )
ZREBZRBEEH AR
AEEHEE=FRELKITLE
DEAB(TLEBTE]) - RZF
ZNFELANB  LETHZHK
EmEEERRERYE - WEAF
Bo 2 HIRBERBER AT
FERBEFIET - REERARZ
ZENF+-ABLBERK
B - B EFESERZAERR
“EENF-ARELBETELA
RZBRER - R_ZEZNF A
—+tR8 - AEEEE %R
BA - EEOPHIBERR M
REZR  BRAEELFARKE
5,180,0007C ° E/EERN -2 F
NEANBR-ZZE-ZEF+ BB
REHF RZE-—ZFALA=T
B EEERESHEREA
B BREZRBEREDED -
RZE—ZTF+A=+=H ¥
EREBERZAERLEETS
BARZR ([ EERHER]) 1R
HEF EBefERR S —
—F—A+N\BEALF K&
BESHLEEREERZHR -

(b)

On 16 June 2008, the Group lodged a petition to the Shanghai
First Infermediate People’s Court (the "Shanghai Court”) fo rescind a
service contract signed with a third party for a service fee of up to a
maximum amount of RMB5,180,000 (approximately
HK$6,151,000) as a result of a dispute in the contract terms
between the Group and the third party (the “Shanghai Action”]. On
9 September 2008, the defendant of the Shanghai Action
submitted ifs objection fo the Shanghai Court and claimed that the
adjudication of the disputes should be raised under the Hong Kong
Llaw instead of the PRC Law. The objection was dismissed by the
Shanghai Court in November 2008 and the appeal against the
decision of the Shanghai Court was also dismissed by the
Shanghai Higher People’s Court in January 2009. On 27 February
2009, the Group received a notification from the Shanghai Court
that the defendant of the Shanghai Action submitted a counterclaim
and requested the Group to make the payment of RMB5, 180,000.
The Shanghai Court heard the counterclaim in September 2009
and inJuly 2010. On 25 September 2010, the Shanghai Court
ordered fo rescind the service contract and the counterclaim from
the defendant was dismissed. On 23 October 2010, the
defendant submitted an appeal against the decision of the
Shanghai Court to the Shanghai Higher People’s Court (the
"Shanghai Higher Court”) and the Shanghai Higher Court heard
the appeal on 18 January 2011. The Group is waiting for the
judgement from the Shanghai Higher Court.

#3% 2010/2011
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38. ARER (4) 38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Contd)

b) (&) (b)  (Contd) %
RZZEZNFAATE EEFE On 10 September 2008, by a writ issued in the Court of First
mEER ([BRER]) —BEE Instance of the High Court of Hong Kong (the “Hong Kong Court"),
BHZEEXED - LEFRZ the defendant of the Shanghai Action, claimed the Group for the
BEEREAEBEXINARSE payment of RMB5, 180,000 (the “Hong Kong Action”). The Group
5,180,0007T ([&EFFA]) » K& applied on 28 October 2008 to the Hong Kong Court fo stay all
BER-_ZTTENF+AZF+/\H further proceedings in the Hong Kong Action in favour of the
REBERRFREMAN LG Shanghai Court on the ground that the Shanghai Court is a more
ERREBAZERBRDRZEM appropriafe forum than the Hong Kong Court for the adjudication
HdiEfr - RER EBERBE of the disputes raised. The said application was heard on 4
BEREREEHMESZ DX December 2009 and the Hong Kong Court ordered that all further
ETHIR - FHBBER_TZN proceedings in the Hong Kong Action be stayed in favour of the
F+_AMBARA ‘if/%/fﬁmﬁﬁ Shanghai Court and that the defendant of the Shanghai Action
SREMBULBER R & should pay the costs of the Group.

ZBBFRBZEMFRER t
BHRBIWERINAZENE

% o
REBASEDBEZBER 2 Having considered the legal advice from the Group’s PRC legal
BER BEHEASEELE counsels, the directors believe that the Group also has a good case
FATEERSER - EFHEE in respect of the Shanghai Action. The directors believe that the
i EEITEREBFAREERRN Group also has good grounds of defence in case the Shanghai
?%%ﬁ AKEBRRNERA Action and Hong Kong Action are ordered to proceed in Hong
c Hit - EFERREATRR Kong. Accordingly, the directors consider that no provision for the
%E)ﬂ service fee is necessary.

39. BEALRS 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
MRREMBRR LML T REEIN Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
AEERFRNEBEALIIZLTIR had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

5

(a) HEEALZREEER (a)  Outstanding balance with related parties
RIFEHR - REBEBZ QT Details of the Group’s balances with its associates as at the end of
FABE 1B ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬁﬁ the reporting period are included in note 19 to the financial
F19 RIBERKR - XEEHRH statements. Guarantees given by the Group fo financial institufions
BREABERARSE —REE in connection with general credit facilities granted to its associates
ERMGE T2 BRENTBERE at the end of the reporting period are included in note 38(a) to the
fif 5 38(a) © financial statements.

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

AEREG (8) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
AEBF2EBEAEZHMMT (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
£8
GROUP
—E——F —T-%F
2011 2010
FHET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS RN Short term employee benefits 48,670 38,084
EEBBRERT Equity-seftled share option expense 1,184 2,136
BR&EN Postemployment benefits 150 144
ENTEEEBRAR Total compensation paid fo
B 5R key management personnel 50,004 40,364

FREEMEFFHNMBRE
PiEE8

AEBRAEMN LBz —EH
DEVEMELREN TRERR
BRAR (AARAB—RNTES
BoKB R A0 ER) 2L
Fl 31,039,000 T (ZE— T
£ 1,890,000 7T) °

BE-_T——F=A=+—HL
FE AEERAAEEIHED
ARAESRRARETREIY
INEAGEIRE

(1) ZREBETRARFMET
BoAwEIRD
93,200,000/ 7T °

(2) FRBETRAARAFZH
BRAFAIR(ER) AR
RE([RAIR(ER) 5
ARETRRERIRO
6,200,000/ 7T °

B) FRFEIBRRFRESHC
RAASELRNEREBH A
842,000/ T % 360,000/ 7T
(ZE-Z 558 A
480,000/ 70 &) o

AEEEEB SN EREER R

FOEFFTLAERS -

(c)

(d)

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 8 to
the financial statements.

The Group incurred rental expenses to Land Smart Development
Limited, a company owned as to 50% by Mr. David Chien, an
executive direcfor of the Company, in respect of a lease for an
office property in Shanghai of HK$1,039,000 (2010:
HK$1,890,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group had the
following transactions with TTCL and TBC, associates of the Group
(note 19):

(1) TBC subcontracted foundation works of approximately
HK$93.2 million to TFL.

(2) TBC subcontracted engineering and mechanical works of
approximately HK$6.2 million to Tysan Engineering (HK]
Company Limited ("TEHK"), a subsidiary of the Company.

(3) TBC and TTCL paid management fee of HK$842,000 and
HK$360,000 (2010: HK$480,000 and Nil] to the Group,
respectively.

These fransactions were entered into by the Group and its
associates in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

#3% 2010/2011
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39. BEALRE (&) 39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
e) HE-_ZT——4%=A=+—HLt le) During the year ended 31 March 2011, the Group had sold ifs
FE FAEEMEFEERAS properties held for sale to certain of its key management personnel I
REE 2 ARREKE L EHFF and their close family members at a consideration of '
EEREEZME REAR HK$34,359,000 (2010: HK$2,174,000). The properties were
34,359,000 ;L (—Z T — T F ¢ sold at prices mutually agreed by both parties.

2,174,00087T) - ZEWET K
BRI ERHBEZERLE -

40. HEKEBRQF 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) HEMELRA (a) Disposal of subsidiaries

R-ZZB-ZEXA+ZR " &2 On 12 June 2010, Tianjin Development Company Limited (“TDC"),
AR EMBLRARZERESR a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Stonehill Limited
RAR (NERARE])  AARZ ("Stonehill"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Tian
2 & Mt B 2 & Stonehill Limited An (Tianijin) Investment Company Limited, a third party, entered info
([ Stonehill]) k& =77 X% (X a disposal agreement to dispose of all of their equity interests in
B REBRARNE-BBYE= and the rights and benefits in the shareholders’ loan to Consco
FEILHERH  AEHERSE Investment Company Limited ("Consco”], a non wholly-owned
RARFFEZ2ENE 27 Consco subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiary, Tianjin International
Investment Company Limited Building Company Limited, to an independent third party. The
(IConscol) & ELfff &2 A1 R EE consideration for the disposal was approximately HK$885 million,
RAREERLAIN 2 RERE of which a total of HK$609 million were received by TDC and
BRREROEN IS HEZ Stonehill. The Disposal was completed on 29 October 2010.

R {E#7885,000,0008 T * EH 4
$£609,000,0007 o 2B K
Stonehill{ER - HEFHEHR - T
—ZE+B-+HNARTHK °

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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(a) HEWBAT ()

" 4 ConscoR EMIBARIMEE X
EBMERE - ARREHRIRZ
E-—ZEFERATZBR_Z—
ZELA-+/\BHEEBELE
BEEZAMRBE -

BHENEERE:
E - BERR
RBEM* (ME16)

#E

B S RYUER

Htp A - AR RES
EHER

Re RRITHEER
HEMAFERERERS
eI IR
EXEHER R (E32)
AEERENER
IR BRI A B
IR R 2n

B[] 5N E R B R 4

B0 8 2 T R A PR 9F
TR AR R R R ) R (B HEBR
HEZBNEE

BEEEX
B B % ) AT S M s

ENAA
RERE

~ 4

A 5 4t e O

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)

B smagsmadH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

The principal business of Consco and its subsidiary is property

investment. An announcement and a circular were made on 22
June 2010 and 28 July 2010, respectively, on the Disposal.

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties (note 15)
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits
Time deposits
Cash and bank balances
Other payables and deposits received
Tax payable
Deferred tax liabilities (note 32)
Loans from the Group
Loan from a non-controlling shareholder
Non-confrolling interests

Release of exchange fluctuation reserve
Release of difference between consideration

and the carrying value of non-controlling interest

acquired recognised in equity

Loan assigned
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash consideration

FET
HK$'000

6,437
889,200
833
1,759
Q07
48,168
21,286
(28,317)
[749)
[209,753)
(157,098)
(71,409)
(163,520)

337,738

(64,531)

22,019

295,226

157,098
156,469
608,793

608,793

=% 2010/2011 @
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40. HENBRR (&) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Con

(a) HEMEZRE (&) (a) Disposal of subsidiaries (Cont'd)
FRLENMBRARZAE R An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cc@pivdenm in
FRBACEBRAFEANN respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

FET
HK$'000
RerE Cash consideration 608,793
BHEZRE RFTHER Cash and bank balances disposed of (69,454)
FRLEMBARZEHE&KR  Netinflow of cash and cash equivalents
EFRRSEARAFE in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries 539,339

20’0/20] 1 Annual Report
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(b) HEHERRIREFRBHE

AEl

(i)

RZZE-ZTFALA=+=
B AEBLHERKRES
M10%Es REREER
200,000% 7T # # F K #
= R E R 776,000%
T RABHRENBARA
(RABSHEE]) TZ2K=
—REBS NERELER
AEERRAEFZHERR
ZH0%MEAEHEBAIRK
BAEBEZHERNT -

BHENEEFE:
mE - BER&E
#E
B SRR
Hip YR~ AR

J58i7%A
Re RRITHEER
EE Y AL L5
EATE R
HipEAFER
BEliEE
ENRRMBRRNA
FERHIE
AEERBENER
IR BRI H A B
JEHR R R 2

BEEER
HEMN B A RMGER

BRI
AL N
RERE

ﬁ
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40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

EREmERERA D

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of

associates

(] On 22 September 2010, the Group disposed of a 10%
interest in and the rights and benefits in the shareholder’s loan
of HK$200,000 to TTCL at a total cash consideration of
HK$776,000. TTCL and its subsidiaries (the “TTCL Group”)
are principally engaged in general frading. Immediately after
the disposal, the Group’s interest in TTCL is reduced to 40%
and the TTCL Group became associates of the Group.

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Inventories
Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Amounts due fo fellow subsidiaries

Tox payable
Loans from the Group

Loan from non-controlling shareholders

Non-confrolling interests

loan assigned
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Safisfied by:
Deemed acquisition of associates

Cash consideration

FET
HK$'000

199
13,828
666
1,808

6,734
(4,029)

[409)

(4,058)
(1,529)
(1,000]
(1,000)
(5,605)

5,605

200
[545)

5,260
4,484
776

5,260

=% 2010/2011 @
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40. HEMBLAT (£&)

(b) HEREREREEKBHE

~NEl (&)
i (&)

FRLEMBARZRSE
FRELEERLFED
#r

RERE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Coni'd)

—=h

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed. acquisition of

associates (Cont'd)

(i)

Cash consideration

BEHEZHERRTES  Cash and bank balances disposed of

(Cont'd)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:

FET
HK$'000

776
(6,734)

EHRELENBARZIE  Netoutflow of cash and

FERBEEA
it R

(i) AZTZNFLA-THAE &

& B B Victor Creater] 32 735 7L A
fR1E510,000/8 T HEE N KA 12
SETRE1%MHE - WIAK(EB0,000
ATBASER TRARETR
2 B 3050,0007 JT & & F Victor
Create ° RARE TR R HWE
REAFERFEETIRRE - B
BHE®R  AERERRFRET
RZEZRDEI%  MEIE
ETRREWNBRARIKANEE
ZHENTA o NS - Victor
Create AN NA —HEERTE
PR EF60% M - WA AL A
SEREERIERFZTHE
40%MRHE - BEEZER HH A
Bf - BERBRARARZEE
NEtAZTNLBRHEZAMH
7 o

2010/2011 Annual Report

disposal of subsidiaries

(i)

cash equivalents in respect of the

(5,958)

On 29 July 2009, the Group entered info an agreement with
Victor Create for the disposal of 1% interest in TBC at a
consideration of HK$510,000 and for the assignment of the
loan granted by the Group to TBC of HK$50,000 to Victor
Create at a consideration of HK$50,000. TBC and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
building and construction works. Immediately after the
disposal, the Group's interest in TBC reduced to 49% and
TBC and ifs subsidiaries became associates of the Group. At
the time of disposal, Victor Create was owned as to 60% by a
director and substantial shareholder of the Company and
40% by the son of another director and substantial
shareholder of the Company. Further details of the transaction
were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 29

July 2009.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of

associates (Cont'd)

li)  (Contd)

Net assets disposed of:

Property, plant and equipment

Loan to an investee

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due from customers for contract works
Trade receivables

Other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Tax prepaid
Cash and bank balances
Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Amounts due to customers for contract works
Tax payable

Loan from a shareholder

Statutory reserves

Non-controlling inferests

loan assigned
Gain on disposal of inferests

in subsidiaries

Safisfied by:

Deemed acquisition of associates
Cash consideration

FET
HK$'000

(608
(3,765)
[899)
(2,500)
(12)
(20,250

17,750

50

155
17,955
17,395

560

17,955

=% 2010/2011 @
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31 March 2011 =F——%=A=+—A —=
40. HEMWB AR (&) 40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
(b) HEWBLEIREEKERE (b) Disposal of subsidiaries and deemed acquisition of
2 (&) associates (Cont'd)
(i) (&) (i) (Contd)
FRLENBRARAZRS An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
EARGEARLFES respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
e
FET
HK$°000
RerE Cash consideration 560
BEHEZHRERRITEH  Cash and bank balances disposed of (13,115)
EBRHEMNBARZHESE  Nefoutflow of cash and
LERREER cash equivalents in respect
i of the disposal of subsidiaries (12,555)
(c) HEWE LAz Ezz (c) Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
RZZEZAFTA+TRE A& On 16 October 2009, the Group disposed of 10% interest in TTCL
M- R2BUE=FTHERAE to an independent third party at a consideration of HK$10 and
S210%0 KHE - REA108 generated a loss of HK$298,000.
7T © e 1 4 E518 298,000 7T ©
41. mERERERME 41. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS
FTEHFREEXZ Major non-cash transaction
BANH 18— A E - A AR As further explained in note 18, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
EMBRAEERFTVEE R Company entfered info a sale and purchase agreement with the Vendors
PA# 3 & X f8300,000,0007%8 T EE to acquire from the Vendors 40% equity inferest in and the rights and
5 7 75 60 %1 = B0 T 8 2 A1 89 40 % Ak benefits in the shareholders' loans to the Then 60%-owned Subsidiaries
BEBRREXNENRER - BIEZ for the total cash consideration of HK$300,000,000. Up to 31 March
TE—-——Ff=ZF=+—H #EHRE 2011, total consideration of HK$ 150,000,000 was paid. The
150,000,000/ TEE I - ZX5H) remaining balance of the consideration of the transaction was included
REBKDFARZE——F=A= in other payables, deposits received and receipt in advance as af 31
T-HHEMEMNKIE  ERTER March 2011 (note 29).

TR R (£ 29) °

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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S REREszeRMIA 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

REEHF  SELRTAYEEE The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial insfruments as
(I y at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
F 4 =3 GROUP
TREE Financial assets
“B--f Z3-%%
2011 2010
BATEIA BLTERHA
BREZEMEE BR/emEE
-KEE -H(EEE
Financial Financial
assefs at air assefs af fair
¥R volue through 7% value through
58 profitor 3R profit or
Loans and loss - held &3t loans and loss - held )
receivables for trading Total recelvables fortrading Totel
Tén Tén Térn A AT A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BELRZRA Amounts due from associates
(P 19) [note 19) 1114 - 1114 — — —
mEERRER loans fo associates
(Fy319) note 19) 3,250 - 3,250 2450 — 2450
BARNER Trade receivables 454734 - 454734 397 441 - 397 441
NECEIN Investments ot fair value
BEIRE hrough profit or oss - 122,933 122,933 - 4,002 4,002
b EYEE Other receivables 319N - 319N 26,497 - 26,497
TEeRIA Derivative financiol
insfruments - 87 87 — 12 12
THEH Time deposits 788 527 - 788 527 952375 — 952375
XRH%ES Restricted cash 56,286 - 56,286 114,180 - 114,180
ReRBNER Cash and bank balances 321,484 - 321,484 396,865 — 396,865
1,657,306 123,020 1,780,326 1,889,808 4014 1893822

=% 2010/2011 @
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42. BB E D 2EMIE (&) 42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CAT LORY (Cont'd)
cRBEE Financial liabilities e
"% _f—ffﬁ\"'{
2011 2010 .
BATEA BATETA
BhzeRER BRzeBER
-KFEE -HEEE
s Financial TR Financial
AAGIRZ  liabilifies ot fair BABEZ  liabilfies of fir
SHEE  voluethrough SBBE  value through
Financiol profitor Financial profit or
liabilifies loss - held it liablies loss - held i
at amortised cost for trading Totol ot amortised cost for trading Total
FER FEn FER T T AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERESEAR Trade payables and
EfiRES refenfion payables 290,243 - 290,243 225,786 — 225,786
A EMATE Other payables 157,921 - 157,921 13,196 — 13,196
fEEBTIA Derivative financial instruments - 5,847 5847 - 1746 1746
WeRTRE Inerestbearing bank
borrowings 460,714 - 460,714 704775 — 704775
REBEDAZER  Loonfomon ossociate 24,560 - 24,560 24,560 - 24,560
933,438 5,847 939,285 968,317 1746 970,063

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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W B FEWE  NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMPANY

Financial assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
(note 18)
Bank balances

Financial liabilities

Amounts due fo subsidiaries
[note 18)
Trade payables [note 28)

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)

£ —F-FF

2011 2010

E95 Enk
WA e K18
Loans and Lloans and
receivables receivables
FET FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

22,312 —
11,925 276
34,237 276
—E——-F —T-ZF
2011 2010
R REHEAAR
HERZ S8R 2
TRBE TRAE
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at

amortised cost  amortised cost
FET FEr
HK$’000 HK$'000

83,926 188,757
15 10
83,941 188,767

=% 2010/2011 @
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43. DFHEFHRERB

AEBERAUNTSARABEEREKE
ERMIAZAYE:

F1E : WHEEERABENERTS
ZAREHEREFTENAFE

F2E  NEMBESATEREERE
ZEABBY R ERAERE
R2EEDETENRYE
BHERLENZREMSE
E - BRBEAFEERELR
BzeREE QVEERS
EeEERBIAEEERE
FERAAEBRASECEE
(R BRI HER)

FIE  UHMESATEEEERE
ZBABBEHFNEEEARF
#iE (LR SHAZER)
ZEETEFENRTE

K- —FR-F-FF=A=1

43. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing

the fair value of financial instruments:

level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
allinputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are observable, either directly or indirectly, but where
prices have not been determined in an active market, financial
assets with fair value based on broker quotes, investments in
private equity funds with fair values obtained via fund
managers and assets that are valued using the Group's model
whereby the majority of assumptions are market observation

fair values measured based on valuation techniques for which
any inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair
value are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs)

Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011 and 2010:

—A#ZELNFEEZEE
% GROUP
CE--E _3-%F
2011 2010
F1E El= EX @t F1E LY $IE @t
Level 1 level 2 level 3 Total level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
T T TAT FEL Fir TET TEn FEr
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BATEFAERL Investments at fair value
& through profit or oss 4183 118750 - 122933 4,002 - - 4,002
TE2RIA Derivative finoncial
instruments - 87 - 87 - 12 - 12
4183 118,837 - 123020 4,002 12 - 4014

N\
@ 2010/2011 Annual Report
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31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H
FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (Cont'd)

Liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 March 2011 and 2010:

£ GROUP
“E--% “E-%%F
201 2010
$1E $E 238 @it E £V %38 h
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total level 1 level 2 level 3 Total
Fin FiL Fir Tir Fn Fn Fin Fir
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TE2RIA Derivative financiol

instruments - 5,847 - 5,847 — 1,746 — 1,746

BE-T——45ZA=+-8 &2
ALFEARATEIEZ 2RIA
(Z2-2%: ) - 57 BIBRE
2B WERATENE  EIEAYL
WEALEE (CE-BF:H) -

The Company did not have any financial instruments measured at fair
value as at 31 March 2011 (2010: Nil]. During the year, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2010: Nil).
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44. BEREBERE B ERBE 44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

AEBZTZcRIABRERS R
T#F  BRESERRE M ERR
B BAVERAABRZZRE 14
ERMTE BANEZRAREMERN
REARBITEE -ZFEMIAZ
AENMBHRRABMEARE - &
ZECBTARRZERRIAFEIRE
ZERBRIBEREINNT - EREE
BRERZERR  MRERERKE
W IREUE E 1R 16

=EmEE

AEEZIESREERRE NIRRT
BT - DA eI 5 BR 5N % HL A R LK

TR ©

ARNEARER S ZRITHEFRR
FEHREBR T ZREENR - &
RITBEFEZEERRIAK -

AEBEZEERRIEREEEKRE
SEFREMERRIE ERERE
ERSHENESEE  mMAKET
HrEZERBRYTEX - AEEWE
EERBRBESEFR BN FEHZ
BRRAMEZEARSHFREF - B
BASEEBRREREKESERRE
MEKREZFERBR CEZE(LE
BB B RR M 524 R 255 &
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POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and-bank balances,
trade and other receivables, investments at fair value through profit or
loss, derivative financial instruments, frade and other payables and bank
borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes to these financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how fo mitigate these risks
are set out below. Management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure that appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, and
frade and other receivables.

The credif risk on bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high creditratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable fo its trade and other
receivables. Management monitors each individual trade debt on an
ongoing basis and the Group's exposure fo bad debis is not significant.
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with the
exposure spreading over a large number of counterparties and
customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure fo
credit risk arising from frade and other receivables are disclosed in notes
24 and 25 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly aftributable fo
its inferest-bearing bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rafes expose
the Group to inferest rate risk. The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However, management monifors the Group's
inferest rate exposure and considers entering into inferest rate swaps fo
reduce ifs exposure fo interest rafe fluctuations should the need arise.

The following fable demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in inferest rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before fax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings)
and the Group's equity (before any impact on fax).

£E GROUP
BBt Al E R
Rz #m/ L)
£ Increase/ R
Increase (decrease) R AD*
in interest in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity*
T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2——F 2011
100E (4,618) -
RITEH Bank loans 100 basis points
TESBIA Derivative financial 1005 24 2,000 -
instruments 100 basis points
—T-FF 2010
1005 F (7,048) -
RITEK Bank loans 100 basis points
fTHEmMIA Derivative financial 1005 % 2,000 -
instruments 100 basis points

* FEREREEMN

Excluding retained profits

=% 2010/2011 @
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44, BIBEREEEEREE (£)

SNE B B2

AEBETENEBRPE AL R
71% EXBAIRSGHUBTRARE
RE -AFE  AEEZRITEEU
/%75& T(ZE—ZF : BT
JU)EHE °

ERERBEERALEIEY 2EY
B THENEFTERERIT LR
SNES 4] o

TRIFRBERR  EFEEME
BEBTEZERT  AEEZBH

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of ifs transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In the
current year, the Group had bank borrowings denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and Euro [2010: Hong Kong dollars and Euro).

Management monitors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity af the end of the reporting
period fo a reasonably possible change in the Euro exchange rate, with

aEf(REBEERABZRAFER
Red) HETEXHRSEAEE

all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax [due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

Z UL -
£E GROUP
BR%5E A & A
#m/ i) BEEm/
DT_I:)E‘T Increase/ R D*
#m,/ Ggd) (decrease) Increase/
Increase in in profit (decrease)
Euro exchange rate before tax in equity*
T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
—2——-F 2011
WAL BT I Hong Kong dollar
weakens against Furo 5 (253) -
W& T B TR If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against Euro 5 253 -
—T-TF 2010
W& T BT % If Hong Kong dollar
weakens against Euro 5 (290) —
WAL BRTES If Hong Kong dollar
strengthens against Euro 5 290 —
o AREREEM * Excluding refained profits

. 2010/2011 Annual Report
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r
r
. UBEREEEEREE (#)  44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
/ POLICIES (Cont'd)
N .
B &L /E R Liquidity risk
AEEZERRBEBNARTEER The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
HEEREHEBEUZARET funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The Group
- AEETHBRAETERSMN regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
nBRAERATEEREMNEIS adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
AE o
BEEITHNRERES  UTHIIK The maturity profile of the Group's and the Company’s financial liabilities
SEERARARNBERRcEMARE as af the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
A undiscounted payments, is as follows:
EJE] GROUP
“E-F
2011
REREE 128750R 1255 SFNLE @t
Less thon 105 Over
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total
TET TEL TET TET TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
ENESRFRENRES Tode payables and refention payables - 290,243 - - 290,243
EtbEfIFE Other payables - 15791 - - 15792
TESBTIA Derivative financial instruments - 26 5,821 - 5,847
MERTEE ¥ Interestbearing bank borrowings * 53,000 75829 301,945 31,073 461,847
REBERANER Loan from an associate 24,560 - - - 24,560

77,560 524019 307,766 31,073 940,418

=% 2010/2011 @
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44, BREAREEEERRE (£)

mEBELEE(E)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
“E2-%f%
2010
REREE 120A4A 1256 SFNE At
Less than 1105 Over
Ondemand 12 months years 5years Total

FAL FEr FAL Fi FAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(mE7)  (FEH) (KEF)  (LEH)  (FEF)
[Restated] ~ (Restated) ~ (Restafed) ~ (Restated]  (Restated)

ENESRFRENRES  Tode payables and refention payables — 225786 — — 225786
Bt BN A Other payables - 13,196 - - 13,196
fTE4MIA Derivative financial instruments — 293 1,453 — 1,746
WBRTEE* Interest-bearing bank borrowings * 290,930 109,750 53750 252000 706,430

REBERTNEH

* RZIE——F=ZA=t+-HEZ=E-—
ZF=ZA=+—H KWERTEER
EREREREFEE TFTERAE
GHEMNEREREEERZBRTE
#53,000,0007% 7T & 290,930,000/
T At st Bl BEARRmE - &
ECHENDBRRENEREE -

BEHB LMIRERERIE - EEEN
MEZSRTERRENBRERER TS
R1I2EARNEEES  WEERAEZSR
AEFGeERREBBEME 2T EHEE
B oRNELBHETEREZETIEE
AEBREBREEMEE B 2B H
Mo AEEETERZHBZER  UEE
NEHERAERRE —RERFZHER
BRRETER 2GR RZF——F=A
=+—8  BEFHEM 2[R ER
108,247,000 T ( = & — T F :
195,064,000 7T) : R—ERF (BEERE
W4 ) B (322,527,000 (Z T~ :
474,979,000 L) R A FIN L EN
31,073,000/ 7L (ZZ —Z F : 36,387,000
BIL) °

@ 2010/2011 Annual Report

Loan from an associate

24,560 - — — 24,560

315,490 349,025 55203 252,000 971,718

Included in interest-bearing bank borrowings are bank loans of
HK$53,000,000 and HK$290,930,000 as at 31 March 2011 and 31
March 2010, respectively, containing a repayment on demand clause
giving the lender the unconditional right to call the loan at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, these amounts are
classified as on demand.

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors do not
believe that the bank loans will be called in its entirety within 12 months, and they
consider that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates
as sef out in the respective agreements. This evaluation was made considering:
the financial position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of events of
default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank loans, the maturity
terms at 31 March 2011 are HK$108,247,000 (2010: HK$195,064,000)
payable less than 12 months; HK$ 322,527,000 [2010: HK$474,979,000)
payable in one to five years, inclusive; and HK$31,073,000 {2010:
HK$36,387,000) payable over five years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2011 Z2——%=A=+—H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
COMPANY
“E—-F
2011
12{8 A
EEXEE R 1255 5ENL it
Less than Tto5 Over
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
TER TET TER TET TEx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Amounts due to subsidiaries 83,926 - - - 83,926
Trade payables - 15 - - 15
Guarantees giving to financial insfifutions
in connection with facilifies
granted fo:
- subsidiaries 973,304 - - - 973,304
- associafe 20,000 - - - 20,000
1,077,230 15 - - 1,077,245
3
2010
12{2 A
BEREE IR 1265 BFNE L)
Less than o5 Over
Ondemand 12 months years 5 years Total
TEL TEL TET TEL TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Amounts due to subsidiaries 188,757 — — — 188,757
Trade payables — 10 — — 10
Guarantees giving o financial institufions
in connection with facilifies
granted fo subsidiaries 1,406,398 — — — 1,406,398
1,595,155 10 - — 1,595,165
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44, BIEEREEEEREEK (&)

EHEERTHBEBZ L FE

EERR REAUBRRARMABRSE
ZERMEERCBARCRAESRE
FAZDVFEES -

5 (B 2 2

5 B S Rl 2 15 A A 15 UK T R
BRIER - EEEHUEREFTSFA
FEREZRER R-_FT——Fk=
Z-FF-_A=t—RB AKEEH
EERNRDERERDBREERN K
& (P5E20) M 5l Bz BEEAE A -

TRITEMBEEMERERTE L
BRAT - ARG RBBEFER R
R REZEKAEHROHRER

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assefs
and financial liabilities reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position approximate to their respective fair values.

Market price risk

Market price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
value of individual securities. The Group is exposed fo equity price risk
arising from individual equity investments classified as trading
investments (note 20) as at 31 March 2011 and 2010.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo every 10% decrease in
the fair values of the equity investments, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying amounts

FE10% 25 2 GURIL - at the end of the reporting period.
rE BREE A& A
ZHREE D g
Carrying Decrease LA *
amount of in profit Decrease
investments before tax in equity*
TET TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—-F 2011
BAFEFARS Listed equity investments af fair
2 Emikph & value through profit or loss 4,183 418 -
—E-zF 2010
BAFEFABS Listed equity investments af fair
2 Emikp & value through profit or loss 4,002 400 —
* ABERE T * Excluding refained profits
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. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Company's capital management are to
safeguard the Company’s ability fo continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital fo shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2011 and 31
March 2010.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not more than 50%. Net debt includes trade
payables and retention payables, other payables, derivative financial
instruments, interest-bearing bank borrowings and a loan from an
associate less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes total equity of
the Group. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were

EXRBRELERREER - EAB as follows:
EAGEAER RBEHKR BR
BELERMT
—E2-—-f —F-FF
2011 2010
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERE SRR Trade payables and retention payables 290,243 225,786
RENRE S
H A e 14 5B Other payables 157,921 13,196
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 5,847 1,746
RRITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 460,714 704,775
/NN Loan from an associate 24,560 24,560
A EEER less: Time deposits (788,527) (952,375)
XBREIRE Restricted cash (56,28¢) (114,180)
Be MBTES Cash and bank balances (321,484) (396,865)
ReFs Net cash (227,012) (493,357)
i Total equity 1929415 2285016
BREE R Gearing ratio TEAN/A  T@EAN/A

g3 2010/2011 ()
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERiOD_

Subsequent to 31 March 2011, the Compény announced that
management is considering the potential spinning off ef its foundation
business (the “Business”) and separate listing of the Business on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange [the “Potential Spin-off’). Further details of
the Potential Spin-off were disclosed in the Company's announcement

dated 29 April 2011.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial statements, due to the
adoption of new and revised HKFRSs during the current year, the
accounting freatment and presentation of certain items and balances in
the financial statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and
restated to conform with the current year's presentation and accounting
freatment, and a third statement of financial position as at 1 April 2009
has been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 15 June 2011.



PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
ri

BRME
o B Type of

Location development

FE T

EpeE

HEFRK

ZNEE

The Waterfront
Guangfu Road West,
Putuo District,
Shanghai, PRC

F=E
Residential

FERED

il

BINE R R

T FBE

The Riverside

At the junction of Qiongzhou Road

FE
Residential

and Jiefangnan Road,
Hexi District,
Tianjin, PRC

RRBRYE

~ 4
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FTEYE -BF SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

PROPERTIES FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

BRMEE
it B Type of
Location development
hREELESD FE/ /B
SR E A Residential /
Huanghe Nan Dajie, Commercial
Huanggu District,

Shenyang City,

Liaoning Province,PRC.

B4
REEHEE AEHE
HEIRT Approximate  Fi5fER BIMEER
Expected WHABEE  gross floor Group's Stage of
completion Site areas area interest completion
(FFK) (FFHK)
sq.m) sq.m)
—T——%F 62,889 147,000 100% IRREERK
Year 2011 # iR T
Construction
commenced
and partially
completed
—E-ZF 15,160 75,000 Q0% IRERHA
Year 2012 KEB R T
Construction
commenced
and partially
completed
B4
REEHEE AEE
Approximate EST: 3
RS gross floor Group’s P B
Site areas area interest Stage
(FFHK) (FFHK)
(sq.m) [sq.m)
41,340 165,000 7% GEE S
Planning and
design

=% 2010/2011 @
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FEHE - ¥F SCHEDULE OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

REWZE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

1% B AR \‘ oL
Location Existing use Type of lease
B EET x=E & H
RERHILHE Residential long
BREEFIE 3951 - 657

ERANE

China Garden,

Nos. 1-6, lane 39 Ronghuaxi Road,

Gubei New Area, Changning District,
Shanghai, PRC

FE T F=x =
RERIER Residential long
222275 HEHBLE

AREGEEEE L

BEE 218 k2818 & fi

6 residential units of Block A,

Whole of Block B and 28 car parks,

Aidu Building, No. 55 lane 2222,

Honggiao Road, Changning District,

Shanghai, PRC

20’0/20] 1 Annual Report
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A A EP  CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr Francis CHEUNG (Chairman)

Mr FUNG Chiu Chak, Victor (Vice Chairman and Managing Director)

Mr David CHIEN

Miss Jennifer KWOK

Mr CHIU Chin Hung
MrWONG Kay

Mr LAU Kin Fai

Mr Harvey Jackel CHEUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr FAN Chor Ho, Paul
Mr TSE Man Bun
Mr LUNG Chee Ming, George

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr FAN Chor Ho, Paul (Chairman)
Mr TSE Man Bun
MrLUNG Chee Ming, George

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr Francis CHEUNG (Chairman)
Mr FAN Chor Ho, Paul
Mr TSE Man Bun

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Miss MO Wai ling

COMPANY SECRETARY

Miss WONG Suk Han, Kitty

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISERS

Conyers, Dill & Pearman
Szeto & Yeung
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A A EP  CORPORATE INFORMATION

FEERRIT

RERTT (BE)BRAA
ERERRITRENT
BERITERRAA
LEBERTERAAF
RERITERRAA
BEELBESRITARLDA
XZRITER A

A ER

Clarendon House
Church Street
Hamilton HM11
Bermuda

BMMEERTEEREME

B
B
5 838 2557

EERL1E
EARMBEFRFERDE
BEEREREERAA

BB

2R KEER285
£ HEIE 02612

Bk 32 PR IR A0 KSR
687

431t

Www.tysan.com
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong Limited
BNP Paribas Hong Kong Branch
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Wing Hang Bank, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
Church Street
Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

11/F Harbour Centre
25 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

BRANCH REGISTRARS IN HONG KONG

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre
28 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong

HKSE STOCK CODE

687

WEBSITE

www.fysan.com
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